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Financial highlights

Year ended 31 March 1996 1996 1995

Excluding Inciuding

non-operationa! non-gperational

exceptional items exceptional items
Pre-tax profit £323.7m £228.7m £303.7m
Post-tax profit £298.5m £203.5m £282.2m
Earnings per ordinary shars 74.3p 50.7p 71.3p
Dividend per ordinary share 28.3p 28.3p 253p

. Pre-tax profit on ordinary activities £m Turnover £m

Pre-exceptional
itemns

Post exceptional
items

236 251 242 304

1992 1993 1994 1985 1996

Capital investment and net debt £m

2500 901 1044 1093 1174

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996

Cumuiative
capital
investment

Dividend per share p

1000

et debt L .
outstanding ! Lo

192 210 22§ 253

28,3

1981 1992 1993 1984 1995 1996 1992 1963 1994 1995 1996
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Sir Robert Clarke, Chairman

The summer of 1985 was the driest smce
1576 and vet we maintamed supoliss
#ithout imposing any hosepipe bans.
Standards of service to customers were

further improved.
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Chairman’s statement

The year has been one of mixed fortunes.
Overall profit before tax and exceptional
items increased from £304m to £324m.

The Utility business had another
excellent year, Further improvements were
made to services, efficiency and profits.
Bills to our customers remainad the
lowest in England and Wales.

The summer of 1995 was the driest
sinrce 1976 and yet we maintained
supplies without imposing any hosepipe
bans. Quality standards were further
improved and our excelient environmental
record was maintained.

During the year we decided to
withdraw from some activities. This has
entailed making provisions for exceptional
cost items of some £67m plus a goodwill
write back of £28m. Accordingly, after
these one-off exceptional items, earnings
per share fell from 71.3p in 1994/95 to
50.7p. I am sure these changes are right
for the Company and will improve long-
term shareholder value,

The products, property and insurance
businesses also performed well, but the
design and contracting businesses did
not. Trading in Germany was poor and
there was an adverse outturn on a
contract in Hong Kong. We were however
successful in securing a number of
long-term cperating contracts, which | am
confident will produce positive
unregulated earnings well intc the

next century.

Strategy
We carried out a strategic review of all our

businesses during the year, On 21 March
1996, | announced the following key
decisions from this review:

* to concentrate resources on the
further development of the utility business
* to implement successfully with our
partners the portfolic of international
concessions and other long-term
contracts recently won

+ 10 develop only those products and
services businesses which are closely
related to core utility strengths

* 1t implement a managed withdrawal
from stand alone design and construction
business.

Management

| also announced some consequential
management changes. It was agreed with
Mike Hoffman, Group Chief Executive, that
the change in strategy required a new top
management structure. Mike accordingly
left the Company on 31 March 1996 with
the Board's best wishes. From that date |

became full time Executive Chairman,

Bili Alexander, formerly Managing Director
of the Utility company, has taken on
responsibility for all the Group's
Operations and becomes Group
Managing Director. Both he and David
Luffrum, Group Finance and Planning
Director, report directly to me and

together we form the top executive team.

Shareholders and Employees

| was delighted that, on a very wet and
windy September day some 5,000
shareholders visited us on our Open Day

at the superb new water treatment works

at Walton in Surrey. This year's Open Day
is at Farmoor in Oxfordshire. An invitation
to attend is enclosed with this report.

The Open Days provide not only an
opportunity to view our technology but
also to mest some of our employees.
They are rightly proud of their
achievernents and | thank them all for
their effort and commitment in another
year of major change.

We have redefined our strategy and
from a strong financial base are confident
we will continue to add valus in the core
Utiiity operation. Our non-regulated
activities, refocused 10 huild on the core
Utility strengths, will support our
commitment to significant real dividend
growth in the years ahead. At the Annual
General Meeting a 12% increase in
the dividend for 1995/¢6 is being
recommended. We are also seeking
powers to buy back some of the
Company’s shares at an appropriate time,

We remain confident that substantial
real dividend growth will be possible
alongside the provision of quality
cusiomer service at highly competitive
prices,

Sir Robert Clarke, Chairman
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Group Managing Director’s report

Operating Review

Most divisions made good progress in a
year when a comprehensive review of
strategy was completed. The trading
performance of each of the business
divisions and my view of the future are

summarised below.

Utility Operations

The Utility increased operating profits by
8.5% to £387m .on turnover of £975m,
up §%. Operating costs were again tightly
managed and kept well below the rate
of inflaticn, rising just 0.8% excluding
depreciation and infrastructure renewals.

The year saw unprecedented demand
for water during one of the driest
summers on record. By careful resource
management and forward planning we
were able 10 maintain supplies to our
customers without imposing restrictions
such as hosepipe bans and without large-
scale interruptions to supoly.

The standards achieved by our sewage
treatment works again improved the
quality of the water in the Thames and its
tributaries. London is acknowledged to
have the cleanest metropolitan estuary in
the world, There are significant runs of
salmon in the Thames and the otter has
returned to the Kennet.

Our service standards to customers as
measured by the Office of Water Services
(OFWAT} have again improved. The
principal service standards are shown in
the table on page 13.

Market research has shown that our

custemers wanted to know more about

THAMES WATER

the LHility's activities. In response we
launched cur first television advertising
campaign to improve information to
custemers about our work.

We are committed to managing our
extensive capital investment programme
to deliver all of our obligations in a very
efficient manner. We are currentiy
spending on average £350m a year 1o
improve and upgrade our capital
infrastructure. Some exampies of this
work are:

* improving the treatment of drinking
water quality at many plants including the
upgrading of Ashford Common, now one
of the largest water treatment works in
Europe

« extensive refurbishment of 20 sewage
treatment works

* a wide range of construction projects
o remove the risk of fiooding from sewers
* two major sludge incineration projects
to comply with the requirement to cease
the disposal of sludge into the North Sea
by 1998.

Capital expenditure efficiencies were
achieved through rigorous asset planning,
innovative research and design and

strong project management,

Products and Services

During the year the division made good
progress towards specialisation in the
niche markets of municipal water and
wastewater services, and made an
operating profit of £4.3m on turnover of
£156m.

To increase their focus, the

management of our environmental
services companies was broughi closer to
the core of our ¢perations in the Utility.
The Permutit operations in the UK,
Australia, Egypt and South Africa were
soid, as were Homé and Houseman in
Holland. Flocovery in the USA has been

closed.

International Operations

On turnover of £82m the division made an
operating loss of £41m, which included
£10m spent on marksting and pre-
contract _activities. The trading
performance in activities to be
discontinued accounted for a loss of
£31m and was mainly due o the poor
perfermance of cur company in Germany
(UTAG) and an adverse outturn on a
contract in Hong Kong.

During the year we secured six major
long-term schemes in Turkey, Australia,
China, Malaysia, Thailand and Puerto Rico.
Work on these is progressing well.

Following the strategic review we
decided to concentrate on this portfolio
of concessions and other long-term
operating contracts and te initiate a
managed withdrawal from design and
construction operations. Consequently
we intend to sell UTAG and PWT in the UK
and close Waste Sclutions in the USA.

Property and Insurance

Operating profit in the property
companies increased to £10.6m on
turnover of £21m. Our strategy to develop
surplus land has been successful and is

o b




now producing a steady income. New
ventures tc develop a number of
opportunities jointly with property
developers have been agreed and will
make an important contribution to Group
profit. At Barn Elms a scheme to construct
a wildfow! reserve and 320 new homes is
progressing well. This scheme, unique to a
capital city, is the result of a coilaboration
with the Wildfowl and Wetlands Trust and
Berkeley Homes.

Qur captive insurance company (Isis)
made an operating profit of £1.9m {£3.1m)
and generated net investment income of
£6.6m. Isis had £48m of investments at
the year end, valued individually at the

lower of cost or market value.

Employees

We place great emphasis on emgloyee
development and cemmunication. In
particular we take care to ensure that our
staff are well trained and motivated.

Our programme of continucus
development has been maintained and in
the Utilities division much progress has
been made in providing training that has
naticnal accreditation. As a result of this
programme 600 employses now have a
full National Vocational Qualification
(NVQ).

During the year we commissioned a
second employee opinion survey within
the Utilities division. The results of the
survey are being evalualed and will
provide valuable information to help
shape our future empioyee and

management development activities.

This year we have welcomed to the
Group 95C employees in Malaysia and
Australia and are building the business
relationships between our overseas

cperations and the UK.

Research and Development

During the year we successfully
introduced advanced water treatment
technologies developed by the Ultility over
the past five years. Thames Water's
custemers are now receiving higher
drinking water quality than ever before.We
continue to research ways inte improving
the guality and taste of drinking water,
including new methods to renew mains
and new disinfection techniques.

We are developing a novei risk and
consequence computer model o predict
and thereby reduce mains bursts and
consequential water 10ss. A large-scale
demonstration plant to treat
biodegradable municipal wastewater is
underway at Maple Lodge Sewage
Treatment Works (STW), This process
doubles the amount of recoverable
energy and reduces the velume of waste
at landfill sites. We are alse developing
advanced monitoring and compuier
medelling techniques to reduce the risk of
flooding 1o property.

The Future

The key decisions from our strategic

review of all our business activities are

summarised in the Chairman’s statement.
We have again demonstrated the

strengths of our core business and are

Bill Alexander

confident of delivering continuing
improvements in services alongside
further efficiency gains.

By concentrating our resources on the
further development of the Utility
businesses and by rationalising the
remainder of our businesses we have
established a group highly focused on

its core strengths.

B A A A

Bilf Alexander, Group Managing Director

THAMES WATER
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Financial review

Financial Resuits

Group operating profit increassd by 2% to
£368m. The operating margin of 30.6%
was marginally higher than the 30.5% in
the previous year. The improvement in
operating profit is mainly due to:

+ an excellent performance in the Utility
despite additicnal costs imposed by the
exceptionally dry summer

* an increased contribution from
insurance operkations and property
development

« improved margins from our Products
and Services Division.

These improvements were partly offset

by a poor trading performance in stand-
alone design and contracting activities.
7 Group profit befere tax and non-
operating exceptional items increased by
6.6% to £324m. Turncver was 2% greater
at£1,124m.

As a consequence of the strategic
review a non-operating exceptional
charge of £67m has been made relating
to write down of assets and
reorganisation costs. In addition, £28m of
goodwill, previously written off to reserves
cn acquisition has been charged back to
the profit and loss account.

The tax charge for the year was
£25.2m. This was almost wholly advance
corporation tax (ACT) on the dividend
distribution. The tax charge was reduced
by £4.3m as a result of some
sharehclders electing to take their
dividend in shares rather than cash.
The Group will become a payer of
mainstream corporation tax next vear.

THAMES WATER

Because of the continuing high level of
capital investment and the availability of
unretieved ACT, the fuli rate of corporation
tax is unlikely to apply until weli after the
year 2000.

Underlying earnings per share grew
by 4.2% to 74.3p. As a result the Board
propose to continue its policy of real
dividend growth.

Shareholder Returns

There were 401.6m shares in issue on
average during the year. This was an
increase of 1.4% over the previous year
and largely arcse from the decision of half
our private sharehclders to take dividends
in the form of new shares. An increase of
12% in the dividend per share to 283p is
proposed. This is covered 2.6 times by
earnings before non-operating
exceptional charges. After exceptional
charges dividend cover is 1.8 times.

The increase in shareholders’ funds
of £135m is analysed in note 14 to the
accounts. in addition to retained profits,
there were positive movements from the
issue of scrip dividends (£16m) and the
exercise of share options (£3m), offset by
adverse movements of £1m in respect of
currency translation differences and share
issue expenses.

Befare exceptionat items, the return on
shareholders' funds was 14%, compared
with 14.6% in 1994/95.

Capital Assets and Capital Structure
Total investment in fixed assets during the
year was £349m, of which £337m was in

Underlying earnings (pence per share)
& Earnings (pence per share)

M Dividends (pance par share)

75

91/92 92/93 93/94 94/95 95/96

the Utility company. The benefits of the
Utility's investment are being seen in
major improvements in quality and
customer service indicators across the
board, as shown on page 13. in addition
£15m was invested in joint venture
companies to commence our equity
participation in major overseas operating
concessions and build, operate and
transfer (BOT) schemes.

The funding policy of the Group is to
maintain a broad portfolio of debt,
diversified by source and maturity. The
chart right, shows the current maturity
profile of ‘the gross debt of €817m
outstanding at 31 March 1996.

Interest costs reflect mainly the timing

Net cash used for

Capital
investments
66%

Dividends
and tax
21%

Equity
investments

3%

Interest 109%

Net cash cbtained from

Operating cash
flow 80%

Capital
B receipts
3%

¥ Asset
disposals
5%




of debt raised. Falls in short-term inerest
rates during 1895/96 are reflected in a
reduction in the weighted average interest
rate 10 8.3%, from the 8.5% average in the
previous vear. Interest of £20m was
garned on short-term deposits placed
during the year which at the year end
amounted to £276m. Interest in the year
was covered 7.6 times by underlying
earnings.

Future Financing

The water industry is a capital intensive
busingss. Investment requirements will
remain high in the second half of the
decade. Last year we set ourselves an
internal investment target of £1.75bn up
to the year 2000, to mest all service
obligations. Investment of £337m during
1895/86 in the Utility company is on track
with this target. Assuming no fundamental
changes are made to the reguiatory
arrangements or tax regime, these
investments can be financed with only
modest changes in gearing.

At the Annual General Meeting on
30 July 1996 powers will be sought to buy
back up to 10% of the Company's shares
at an appropriate time.

Treasury Policy

Group treasury operations are managed
centrally by a small specialist team. The
objective is to ensure the availability of a
timely flow of funds at a cost which
reflects the credit worthiness of the Group.
Treasury is managed as a cost, not a profit

centre.

Formal statements of treasury policies
and procedures are in place, which are
adopted and monitered by the Board.

A framewaork of credit criteria to ensure
acceptable counter-party risk across a
broad range of financial transactions is
now welt established.

The Group’s approach to treaéury
management is to protect profits against

risks arising from adverse movements in  David {uffrum

interest rates and currency exposures.
Matching of assets and liabilities is
carried out wherever practicable. Swap
instruments and forward rate contracts
are used to hedge interest rate and

£m

currengy risks.
A ratio of two-thirds fixed rate to one- 200
third floating rate is used as a guide in 150

making decisions on maturities. The
proportion of floating rate debt at the year 100
end was 349%,

50
Going Concern 0
The finances of the Company are scund
and the balance shest remains strong.
Gearing was 29.6% at the year end,
marginally less than in 1994/95, The
Directors expect that the Group has £m
adequate resources to continue its 500

operational existence for the foreseeable

future. For this reason, they continue to 400
adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts.

D J Luifrum, Group Finance and Planning Director

S
Eechbhibsn
1897 2000 2005 2010

Gross debt maturity profile

Gross debt interest rate profile

Fixed and floating rates

below 7% 7-8% 8-9% 9-10% 10-11% 171-12%
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Thames Water people in action

Carears Fairs provide an opportunity for

young people to discover the advantages
of & career with Thames Y/afer. Richard
Hawksworth, Graduate Recruitrnent and
Development Officer, is on hand at a
Careers Fair to discuss the Graduate
Business Develcpment Programmea with
potential agclicants. Thames Water

recruits about 20 graduates each year.

THAMES WATER

Pauda Middieditch, Process Manager,

at Beckton, where Thames Water's
largest power station is focated. This
Combined Gas and Steam [CoGAS)
power plant turns biogas released
during sewage treatment infa electricity,
Last year 4.3 megawatts of electricity
from this power siation werg exported

to the national grid.

Dr David Holt, Project Manager for \Water

Quality Research, with Thames Water's
experimental pice ng. Thisisa 1.4km
system of pipes which can mimic the
exact conditions found in any local pige
natwork. Scientists use it to study the
changes that can occur in wateras it
travels from treatment works to cusiomers.
This research fislps to ensure that the
water our customers receive is of the

highest quality.
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Cathy Hooper, receptionist at the
Customer Cantrg in Swindon. Cathy's
contribution to high standards of
Customer Service vsas recognised in
November 1985 when she was chosen as
the 'Custorner Centre Emplovee of the
fonth’, All Thames Waler's 6,200
employees undergo traning in customear

SEIVICG AWarenass.

At the F B Leopold Company

manuiacturing facility in Ziglienople,
Pennsylvania USA, lead maintenance
rrachanic Sid Wawrzyniski puts the
finai touches on the wiring of a Leopold
Vakve Pac Controfier. The group has
recently been merged with the
AShbrook operation in Houston and
provides a single manufactuning facility

for the enfarged Group.

Kathy Hodgson, Construction Enginesr,

on site at Kempton, one of Thames
Water's most acvanced water treatment
WOrks. In the background is a new Frimary
Clarifier. Water vinich has already been
Used in the actual process of purifying
drinking water is treated as waslewater.
The Primary Clarifier is the first stage of
treaimen: for this wastewater before it is

returmied to the river system.

THAMES WATEP
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Group operations

The Thames Water Group, with its main
operations in London and the Thames
Valley, has customers all over the world as
well as throughout the UK. The Group is
divided into three divisions which together
offer a range of services to industrial,
commercial and municipal customers as
well as to households. The key areas of
business are the supply of water and
ireatment of wastewater, consultancy,
coperational management, and sale of
related products and services.

THAMES WATER

Utility Operations

The core business of the Thames Water
Groug is the supply of drinking water and
treatment of wastewater for customers in
London and the Thames Valley. The
Utiiities Division is the regulated arm of
the Thames Water Group which pioneers
improvements in water and wastewater
treatment processes, in order to deliver

continually enhanced water quality.

Products and Services

Thames Water Products and Services
Civision provides internationally a range
of water and wastewater treatment
products primarity tc municipal markets.
Other activities include the transport and
disposal of liquid and dry waste, pipeline
and grounds.maintenance, and other
envircnmental services for which local

authorities are major customers.

International Operations and

Process Contracting

Thames Waler International draws on the
skilis and expertise of the Utility and the
Productis and Services division tfo
undertake maijor infrastruciure projects
for industrial and municipal concerns
around the gicbe. This invoives the *
management and operation of water
and wastewater concessions, often

in conjunction with a local partner

overseas.

The Thames Water Ring Main Conirot Centre.
Water resources and usage for the capital

are monitored closely from here. During the
exceptionally dry weather last summer,
Control Centre staff worked round the clock to
malch avaitable suppliss with the gemand for
water from our customers, As & result of their
forward planning and resouroe manragement,
Tharmes Water's customers suffered no

restrictions on waler use.




nTeL Y TR A
e Fa R

TTPrTREorr— e
R AR

The water regions of England and Wales
The year ended March 1996, was one of the
arigst on record. Rainfall in England and
Wales Js flustrated below. The rainfailin
the Thames catchment area is the most

intensively used in the UK.

Under 23 inches

23-30 inches

Percentage of Effective Rainfall Used

60

Qver 3G inches
50 Thames

40 .
30
20

10

o T T
Ten Water Regions
The grann shoss the average percentage of
Effectis Rania’ which 1s collected end used in
the ter regions of England and Walss. in the
Thames regorn the utilisation is morg than twice

that iri &~v Othar region.

THAMES WATER
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Utility operations

Customers

The Utilitles division forms the core of the
Group's activities, supplying over 7m
people with drinking water, and collecting
and treating wastewater from 11m people
in London and the Thames Valley. We also
provide services to more than 280,000

business customers.

Products
Each day on average we supply 832m
gallons of water from our 380 service

reservoirs and 98 water treatment works.

We also clean up some 850m gallens

THAMES WATER

of wastewater at our 365 sewage works.

Water is transported through some
31,000km of mains and wastewater
through 81,000km of sewers. Cur aim is
to provide ali customers with continuous
supplies of water which meet the
prescribed guality standards. We also
manage the collection of wastewater, its
treatment and ultimate disposal to

exacting environmental standards.

Yiazeris an essential raw materigl for bravang
Leer. Pictured here is the Fuller, Smith and

Turner Brewery at Chiswick.

Meany car washes nowadays recycle the viater

they use, helping fo minirmise waste and

conserve resources.

Our Service to Customers

Despite the very hot summer of 1895 we
maintained supplies to custorners without
impeosing restrictions and without large-
scale interruption to supply. An all-time
record amount of water was put into
supply — in some places the demand for
water reached a peak of 25% above
normal. We were grateful fo our customers
for fimiting the water they took at times of
peak demand.

This performance reflected a year of
effort to improve the Company's care
for customers. During the year, 6,200
employees (28%) attended a two-day
course on customer awareness. Our
Customer Centre in Swindon is a one-
step shop operating 24 hours a day, 365
days a year. Its workload included 3.0m
customer contacts of which some 2.3m
were by telephone and each telephone
enguiry was answered in under 20
seconds on average.

Qur first television advertising

campaign fast autumn was a response to
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market research showing that 90% of

customers wanted more information
about Thames Water. it resulted in a
significant improvement in customer
perception of the Company's
achievements and a higher customer
satisfaction rating. Our ‘radio
advertisements giving advice during the
summer were also well received.

Service standards have continued to
improve since 1990, the first year after
privatisation, as the chart hece shows.

Each service measure is monitored by
at least one of three regulators. They are
the Office of Water Services (CFWAT), the
National Rivers Authority {now succeeded
by the new Environment Agency) and the

Government's Drinking Water Inspectorate.

RTINS S T T VL TP TRL PO TU IR s oY VS N O P T T S P A Ve W pHOr Y IR A PP

1996 . 1995 1990
Drinking water quality compliance 29% 98% 95%
Wastewater quality compliance 99% 98% 84%
Water use restrictions compliance 100% 100% 22%
Response to customer billing queries v. good good V. poor
Responss to written complaints v. good good v. poor

Above left: On average, nearly 14% of the water used in tre home is by the washing machine.
Betow: pupils of the Valley Road School enjoying their swimming lessons. Thames Yialers

Swimming and Safety Scheme funds training for ieachars 1o learn how Lo teach chifdren to swim.

Since 1963 over 2,000 teachers have taken courses finked fo the scheme.

Above left: Reardon Courl Nursing Home in Enfield. We give special consideration to customers whose heaith depends on an uninterrupted water

supply, suUch as customers who use dialysis machines.

THAMES WATER 13
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g
350

300 7

250 1

Average household bills 1996

Thames Water
£181

Beiow: & rare view of one of Thamas Water's hidden assets. Larger than a full size football pitch, the
undlerground reservoir at Highgate has heen drained for routing inspection and maintenance this

vear. Originally built in 1855, it holds 88 million fires and will continue to supply customers in the

Ten water and sewerage companies

Camden and Istington areas well into the next century.

THAMES WATER

Investment

Qur ability to maintain supplies last
summer owed much to our annual
investment programme (£337m in 1995-
96). Four projects in particular supported
our SuUccess in maintaining supplies:

« the completion of a final link in the
Thames Water Ring Main increased the
flexibility of supply to Londoners

« the opening of our upique north
tondon Artificial Recharge Scheme,
which puts surplus winter water into a
huge underground agquifer to help meet
-summer demand .

+ the adding of links in the water mains
systems to the west of our area to provide
a ‘mini ring main’ to improve the security
of supplies to customers in Berkshire,
Oxfordshire and Swindon

« the intensification of our leakage
reduction programme which has aiready
saved 33 million gallons per day since
January 1996.

Quality

Qur investment programme also
produced:

« the completion of the £40m advanced
water treatment works at Walton, Surrey

« further improvements in our water
quality to reach our best ever results

« a further improvement in river water
quality achieved by extensions and refur-
bishments to 20 sewage treatment works
+ a commendation from the National
Rivers Authority for the Tideway in London
— the cleanest metropolitan estuary in
the world




« the completion of 31 projects io
raduce the risk of flooding from sewers
and the startup of the north London
Flood Relief Scheme will protect 1,600
properties by 1998.

A Better Environment
Care for the environment remains one of
our key principles; during the year we:
« began a campaign to help customers
conserve water, winning a silver medal at
the 1995 Chelsea Flower Show for a water
eff.iciency display
« iaunched the '‘Bag it and Bin it
campaign to encourage domestic
customers to avoid disposing of certain
waste through the sewsr system
« screened all investment projects for
environmental impact.

The Ervironmental Audit Committeg’s
review of enwironmental performance is

shown on page 25.

The Future

We are on target to invest £1.756bn in new
assets over the five years to March 2000,
to improve still further our services. We
shall continue to invest in the people we
rely on to deliver them.

Our programme to reduce operating
costs will be maintained for the benefit of
both customers and shareholders.

The average combined charges we
make to our domeastic customers remain
the lowest in England and Wales. We shall
continue to offer a very competitive water

supply tariff for large users.

Above: the Meac Laxe conservation area on the Thames Waste Management site at

Norlands { ane, Crarssy. Beiow: consiruction of a state-of-the-art sludge incinerator at Beckion.

Tive new incineraors a1 Beckion and Crossness will anable Thames Water [o comply with

legisiation which ends the disposal of sewage siudge at sea in 1988,

THAMES WATER
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Products and Services

Operating mainly in the UK and USA, the
Products and Services Division consists
of 13 companies in five business groups.

During the year continued progress
was made to recrganise the products
companies by selling the industrial
companies and concentrating on
municipal markets. Permutit (UK),
Permutit {Australia), Homé/Houseman
{Holland), Permutit (South Africa), Permutit
(Egypt) and WTS (USA) were sold.
Fiocovery in the USAwas closed.

The retained operations have been
clearly focused tc concentrate on

deveicping products to suit the local
municipal markets which they serve.
Thames Municipal Products {TMP} is
the business group which supplies
emergency water treatment equipment,
pipe fittings, meter reading and
chicrination equipment. Trading
conditions during the year were difficult
except for the new Talisman metering
business. All businesses were profitable,
The Municipal Treatment business
group mainly produces process
equipment for the municipal treatment

market. Leopold (USA) supplies filtration

A stainless steel penstock, designed and manufactured by Simon Hartley for the refurbishment of

the Abbeyrmills Pumping Station.
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The Fyne Process plant instafled at Tomnavouiin,

Grampian. The Fyne Process uses PCIs

rmembranes to remove colour from peaty waters.

equipment to mqnicipai water utilities.
Ashbrook {USA) and Simen Hartley (UK)
supply presses to municipal and industrial
customers., This group earned good
margins.

Providing services to municipal and
commercial customers, the envircnmental
group consists of Thames Waste
Management and Brophy Grounds
Maintenance. Progress was made during
the year in securing major contracts with
a number of utilities and local authorities
and they returned satisfactory trading
performances.

The Underground Services companies
include a division of Brophy, Morgan
Collis, MetroRod and Subterra. They
provide pipetine management, survey,
relining and cleaning services to utilities.
Trading conditions in these markets were
weak, resulting in losses.

PCIMS supplies membrane separation
equipment to municipal and industrial
customers. The company had a highly
profitable year.




The division comprises the companies
within the Group that during the year
supplied contracting, consultancy and
operationat management services to
other water and wastewater utilities.

It was decided as part of the Group
strategy review o concentrate on
international concessions and other long-
term contracts, and to implement a
managed withdrawal from stand-alene
design and construction businesses.

As a consequence contracting
og:;erations, mainiy concentrated in
Germany (UTAG) and the UK (PWT
Projects) are for sale, and discussions
with potential purchasers are proceeding.
Waste Solutions in the USA has been
closed. '

Six major long-term contracts were
won with operating periods of up to 25
years. The largest of these at lzmit in
Turkey, a Build Operate Transfer (BOT)
project, will supply water to 1.2m
household and industrial customers. In
Malaysia we have been operating the
State of Kelantan's water supply system
for 500,000 customers. The contract
nas been successfully underway since
August 1995.

At Pathum Thani in Thailand we nave
established a joint venture BOT project to
provide water treatment ang associated
mains, storage and pumping stations 10
serve 800,00C customers. With our
partners Bovis, we have staried a BOV
contract to sene 500,000 customers in
the Da Chang area of Shanghai in China.

in association with Compagnie

Above nght: waler treatmant instaliation in Adelaide, Australia, where Thames Water Ini

Générale des Caux, we have taken over
the operation and management of water
and wastewater systems serving 1.2m
sustomers in Adelaide, South Australia.

in Puerto Rico the division has won a
contract with the Dick Corporation of the
USA to supply design, consultancy and
operating services for a major water
transter scheme, initially for five years.
The concession may eventually extend to

20 years.

cearipelitive concassion 10 manage the water and wastewater systems serving 1.2m pecple.

Above: inlet fo a water treatrment WOrkSs &1
Kelantan, Malaysia, where Thames Wator
International has a concession fo coerate ana
develop the water supply system for 0.5

CUSIOMErS.

ternational and Compagnie Générale des Eaux have won @
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Board members

Executive Directors

1 Sir Robert Clarke MA {67) Chairman
Appointed 1o the Board of Thames Water Authority
in July 1988 and became Chairman of Thames
Water Plc on 1 April 1984, Chairman of Share
Dealing and Nomination Committees.

2 Bill Alexander C Eng (49
Group Managing Director, was appointed to the
Board of Thames Water Pl in'April 1994, A
Chartered Engineer, he joined Thames Water as
Engineering Director in 1889 and was appointed
Managing Director of Thames Water Utilities
Limited in February 1492. Amongst his
responsibilities was the construction of the
Thames Water Ring Main.

3 Biil Harper IPFA (52}
Group Director, Corporate Strategy, was appointed
to the Board of Thames Water Authority in March
1989, He joined Thamas Water Authgrity in 1974
as Chief Accountant. He was Managing Director
of Thames Water Authority 1985-1989, Deputy
Chairman of Tharnes Water Utilities Limited
1689-1992, Deputy Chairman of Thames Water
International 1992-1994, and Divisionai Director,
Products and Services 19941996, He is 2
member of the Environmentai Audit Committee.

THAMES WATER

4 David Lutfrum IPFA (51)
Group Director, Finance and Planning, was
appointed to the Board of Thames Water Autharity
in March 1989. An accountant, he joined Thames
Water Authority in 1974, having previously held
financral posts in the Thames Conservancy.
He became Finance Director of Thames Water
Authority in 1987, He is a mamber of the
Charities Committee,

Group Company Secretary

5 David Badcock MA (51)
Appointed Secretary to the Board of Thames Water
Plc and all Board Committees in Qctober 1995,
Joined Thames Water Authority as Secretary in
1988, was appointed Secretary and Legal
Director, Thames Water Utilities Limited in 1989, a
post he continues to hold.

Neon-Executive Directors o
6 Sir Christopher Leaver GBE (58) Vice Chairman‘ .
Appointed to the Board of Thames Water Authority .
in 1983. He was Chairman of Thames Water Pic
from May 1993 to March 1994. Chairman of
Remuneration and Charities Committees, member
of Nemination and Audit Committess. He is '
Director of Unicnamerica Holdings Plec.

7 Roger Carr (49)
Appointed to the Board of Thames Water Plg in
Novernber 1994. Member of the Nomination,
Environmental Audit and Remunsration
Committees. He is Chief Executive of Williams
Holdings PLC, a director of Forte City Technology
Collage and a member of the GBI Economic
Affairs Committee.

8 Teny Hobson (48)
Appaoinied to the Board of Thames Water Pic in
November 1994. He is Group Director (Finance}
of Legal & General Group Ple. Member of Audit,
Remuneration and Share Dealing Committess.

9 JohnThomson MA (68)
Appointed to the Board of Tharmes Water Authority
in 1984. Chairman of Audit Committee and
member of Normination and Remuneration
Committees, He is Chairman of Compass Group
PLC, Wellington Underwriting plc and Vice
Chairr’nan‘ of J Bibby & Sons plc.

10 John Worlidge MA (68)

Appointed to the Board of Thames Water Authority
in 1988. Chairman of Environmental Audit
Committee and member of the Remuneration
Committes. Trustee Director of the Thames Water
Pension Scheme,




Directors’ report

The Direciors present their seventh Annual
Report together with the audited accounts
for the year ended 31 March 1996.

Principal Activities

The main activities of Thames Water Plc
and its subsidiaries (the Group) are the
provision of:

- water to customers which invoives the
abstraction of water and its treatment and
distribution to customers' premises

+ sewerage services to customers which
involves the collection, treatment and
disposal of sewage from customers'
premises, together with the conveyance
and treatment cf surface water

« international water and wastewater
process design and the marketing of
technical managerial services

+ the development and manufacture of
products for the treatment of water and
wastewater

+ the provision of underground, waste
management and environmental services
« other trading activities including
insurance and property aevelopment.

A list of the principal subsidiary
undertakings appears on pages 50 and
51. Details of the progress made and
information retating to the various
activities of the Group during the year and
plans for the future are given in the Group
Managing Director’s report on pages 4
and 5,

Profits and Dividends

The Group profit for the year attributable
to shareholders was £203.5m (1994/95
£282.2m). A review of the year's
performance is inciuded in the Financial
Review on pages 6 and 7.

The Directors recommend payment
of a final dividend of 19.1p per share,
making a total for the year of 28.3p,
amounting to £114.2m.

Employees

tocal arrangements have continued for
managers to mest employees and their
representatives to discuss matters of
mutual interest and concern. Therg are
employees as Member Trustees for the
three major pension schemes operated by
the Group.

Employees had another opportunity
to join or extend their interest in the
Company Sharesave Scheme and a
number of senior executives below Plc
Board level were granted new options
under the Executive Share Option
Scheme. An appropriation of shares was
made to employees under the Thames
Water Profit Sharing Scheme in respect of
the year ended 31 March 1995. it is
intended that a further appropriation will
be made in respect of the year ended
31 March 1896.

Activities in direct communication
through company newspapers, videcs
and team briefings were continued.

Health and Safety

It is the policy throughout the Group to
ensure that health and safety standards
are maintained at a high level in order to
protect both our empioyees and members
of the public. This palicy is implemented
by the integrated health and safety group
consisting of specialists from within the
Group and led by the Group health and
safety manager.

Employment of the Disabled

Tne Group recognises its responsibility for
the employment, training, career
development and promotion of disabled
persons. Every effort is made to continue
to employ those who become disabled
while working for the Group.

Capital
Ordinary sharehclders were allotted

3,108,839 ordinary shares consequent on
the offer of a scrip dividend.

During the year 676.045 ordinary
shares were issued to holders on the
exercise of their options under the
Company's Sharesave Scheme.

Options for 316,000 ordinary shares
were exercised during the year under the
Company's Executive Share Option
Scheme. Under the Company's Profit
Sharing Scheme for employees 152.855
ordinary shares were issued.

The effect of the transactions referred
to above on the capital of the Company is
detailed in note 25 to the accounis on
pages 46 and 47,

Directors
The names of the present Directors of the
Company are shown on page 18. All the
Directors served on the Board throughout
the financial year. Sir Peter Harrop retired
from the Beard on 25 July 1985 after
serving Thames Water Plc and Thames
Water Authority since 1986. Mr M R
Hoffman left the Company on 31 March
1996 the

announcement of the outcome of its

following Board’'s

strategic review. Details of his
compensation arrangements for early
termination of contract are given on page
24, On 1 April 1996 the Chairman,
Sir Robert Clarke, tock on a fuli-time
Executive role; Mr W J Alexander became
Group Managing Director; Mr D J Luffrum
took on the role of Group Director,
Finance and Planning, and Mrw R Harper
that of Group Director, Corporate Strategy.

in accordance with Article 105 of the
Company's Articles of Association
Sir Robert Clarke, Mr J M Thomson and
Mr W J Alexander will retire at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and,
being eligitle, will offer themselves for
re-election.

Sir Robert and Mr Alexander, as
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Executive Directors, have service
contracts with the Company, subject to
termination by one year’s notice. In
common with other non-Executive
Directors, Mr Thomson does not have a

service contract with the Company.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

The beneficial interests of Directors,

together with those of their famiiies, in
the
commencement and at the end of the

shares in the Cocmpany at
year are shown in the tables on pages 24
and 37 for Executive Directors and non
Executive Directors respectively. No
Director had any non-beneficial interest in
the shares of the Company. There were no
changes in the Directors' registered
interests in the shares of the Company
during the period from 1 April 1996 to 21
June 1996 other than Sir Christopher
Leaver who acquired an interest in a

further 606 shares by means of a bequest.

None of the Directors had any beneficial
interest in the shares of any subsidiary
company.

Executive Share Options

In accordance with the statement made in
the 1295 Interim Report, no further share
options have been, or wili be, awarded
under the Company’s Executive Share

Option Scheme to Executive Directors.

During the year under review, 373,440
options have been granted to senior
the
Shareholder approval is being sought

executives under
for a Long Term Restricted Share Plan
to replace the Executive Share
Option Scheme, initially for Executive
Directors, but with the intention of
extending it to other senior executives

by 1999.

Significant Contracts

During the period under review there werg
n¢ significant contracts between the
Company and any of the Directors other
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Scheme,

than contracts of service with the
Executive Directors,

Substantial Shareholdings

At 21 June 1996 the Directors had been
advised of notifiable interests of 4.2% in
the issued ordinary share capital by
Frankiin Resources Inc. Clients of PDFM
in aggregate accounted for 8%, on
24 May 19986,

The Directors consider that the close
company provisions of the Income and
Corporaticn Taxes Act 1988 do not apply
to the Company. There has been no
change in this respect since the end of
the financial year.

Research and Development

The Group is committed to a programme

of research and development activities.

Page § of the Group Managing Director's
report highlights the main areas where
research activity is undertaken.

Environment

The Directors continue to regard care
for the environment as one of the
fundamental guiding principles of Thames
Water. During the year excellent progress
has been made in setting and achieving
environmental targets, monitored by the
Envircnmental Audit Comrittee, whose
report is ¢n page 25. The 1996
Environmentai Review, which assesses
progress and performance in key areas,
will be published in July.

Policy on Payment of Suppliers

Thames Water actively supports a number
of initiatives to promote a prompt
payment culture, including those
proposed by the Construction Round
Table and the CBi. The implementation of
these principies in the Company's
arrangements with its suppliers is
managed by its procurement subsidiary
Connect 2020. All payment to suppliers is
made on the basis of mutually agreed

terms and conditions which are_:._k\;
established in advance of purchases. .

Political and Charitable Donations

Charitable donations amounting to
£114,000 were made during the vear, Ng
donations were made for political

purposes during the year,

Auditors

A Resclution to re-appoint Coopers and
Lybrand as the Company's Auditors and
to authorise the Directors to determine
their remuneration wilt be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting on 30 July 19986,

Special Business

In addition to the Crdinary Business to be
transacted at the 1998 Annual General
Meeting, a number of items of Special :’
Business will be proposed. Further details” - -
of these items, together with explanatory
notes, will be found in the ciroular .
accompanying this Report and Accounts.
They are:

* a Resolution renewing the power .
granted to Directors in July 1995 to issue .-
equity securities for cash other than pro .
rata to ordinary shareholders ‘

« 2 Resoiution approving the establish-
ment of the Thames Water Long Term
Restricted Share Plan; . \
+ a Resolution approving the
establishment of the Thames Water Cash/
Share Bonus Plan. ' o
* a Resolution authorising the Company.. ’
to make market purchases of up to 10% :
of the Company’s issued share capital. A

By Order of the Board

Badcock, Group Co
June 1996




Corporate Governance

The Directors are pleased to confirm that
throughout the year the Company has
compiied fully with all the provisions of the
Cadbury Commitiee’s Code of Best
Practice published in 1992. The Report of
the Audit Committee on page 26 outlines
the Group's system of internal control, for
which the Board of Directors has overall
responsibility. The Directors’ statement on
going concern appears on page 7. The
Auditors' report on Corporate Governance
matters is set out alongside.
The Board and Board Committees
For ‘the financial year under review,
the Board comprised the Chairman,
Sir Robert Clarke, four Executive Directors,
including Mr M R Hoffman as Group Chief
Executive, and five non-Executive Directors.
Mr Hoffman left the Company on 31 March
1896, and a number of organisational
changes have taken place following a
strategic review. From 1 April 1996, the
Chairman has taken on a full time
executive role. The post of Group Chief
Executive has been superseded by ‘ihat
of Group Managing Director, t¢ which
Mr W J Alexander has been appointed.
The rest of the Board comprises two further
Executive, and five non-Executive Directors.
The full Board meets monthly and
monitors executive management and the
performance of the major business units
across the Group. There is a formal
schedule of matters reserved for decision
by the Board, which includes overall Group
strategy, business planning, major
acguisitions and disposals, treasury policy
and precedures, and risk management.
The work of the Board is supported by
the following Commitiees, each of which
have faormal terms of reference.
Membership of the Commiltees includes
the following Directors:
Audit Committee
John Thomson (Chairman}, Sir Christopher
Leaver and Tony Hobson. The Audit
Committee meets six times g year and

assists the Board in its responsibility to

ensure that appropriate accounting and
financial policies and procedures are
implemented, that systems of internal
conirol and internal and external audit
and that Auditors’

recommendations are ¢onsidered and

are in place,
appropriate actions taken. The Committee
also recommends the audit fee to the
Board. The report of the Commitiee is on
page 26.

Remuneration Committee

Sir Christopher Leaver (Chairman),

Roger Carr, Tony Hobson, John Thomson
and John Worlidge. The Remuneration
Commitiee determines the salaries and
other remuneration of the Executive
Directors, The Committeg's repert is on
page 22.

Environmental Audit Committee

John Worlidge (Chairman), Roger Carr and
Bill Harper. The Environmental Audit
Committee advises the Board on
environmenial policies and monitors the
performance of the Group against agreed
environmental targsts. The report of the
Committee is on page 25.

Share Dealing Committee

Sir Robert Clarke (Chairman) and

Tony Hobson. The Share Dealing
Committee considers ali applications to
deal in shares by Directors and senior
employees so as to meet the requirements
of law and of the Londeon Stock Exchange.
Charities Committee

Sir Christopher Leaver {Chairman} and
David Luffrum. The Charities Committee
makes charitable donations from a budget
allocated by the Board, ceonsiders
community support activities and
encourages charitable fundraising by
empioyees.

Nomination Committee

Sir Robert Clarke (Chairman),

Sir Christopher Leaver, Roger Carr and
John Thomson. The Nomination Committee
makes recommendations to the Board on
Board membership and top management

succession.

. :@ Shsma sty -3";;-_.!

Report of the Auditors to Thames Water Plc
on Corporate Governance matters

In addition to our audit of the financial
statements, we have reviewed the Directors’
statements, on Corporate Governance
matters alongside and Internal Financial
the
the

Control on page " 28, on
Company's compliance with
paragraphs of the Code of Best Practice
specified for our review by the London
Stock Exchange. The objective of our
review is to draw attention to non-
compliance with those paragraphs of the
Code which is not disclosed.

Basis of Opinion

We carried out our review in accordance
with Bulletin 1995/1 'Disclosures relating to
corporate governance’ issued Dy the
Auditing Practices Board. That Bulletin
does not require us to perform the addit-
ional work necessary to, and we do not,
express any opinion on the effectiveness of
either the Group’s system of internal finan-
cial control or its corporate governance
procedures, nor on the ability of the Group
to continue in operational existence.
Opinion

With respect to the Directors’ §tétements
on Internal Financial Control on page 26
and Going Concern on page 7, in our
opinion the Directors have provided the
disclosures required by paragraphs 4.5
and 4.6 of the Code (as supplemented by
the related guidance for tha Directors) and
such statements are not inconsistent with
the information of which we are aware from
our audit work on the financial statements.
Based on enquiry of certain directors and
officers of the Company, and examination
of relevant documents, in our opinicn
the Directors’ statement alongside
appropriately reflects the Company's
compliance with the other paragraphs of
the Code specified for our review.

Coopers &Lybrand

Chartered Accountants
Londer 21 June 1996

THAMES WATER
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Report of the Remuneration Committee by Sir Christopher Leaver

Composition and Role

The Remuneration Committee, which |
chair, comprises the non-Executive
Directors of the Board. The Commitige
members who served during the year
ending 31 March 1996 were as follows:
Sir Christopher Leaver (Chairman), Roger
Carr, Sir Peter Harrop {until 25 July
1995), Tony Hobson, John Thomson and
John Worlidge.

The Commitiee's primary role is t©
determine the salaries and other
remuneration of the Executive Directors.

It does not consider the fees payabie
1o the non-Executive Directors which are
determined every two years by the
Executive Chairman and the Executive
Directors (see note 5 to the accounts on
page 37).

Compliance -

Following the undertaking given to
shareholders at the 1995 Annual General
Meeting, the Remuneration Commitiee
has carried out a comprehensive review of
the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directers in the light of the
Greenbury Report, with the assistance of
internal and externai advice. In the
autumn of last year the Commitiee
commissioned an independent review by

Bacon & Woodrow, an outside adviser,

which confirmed that your Company
aiready complied with most of the
Greenbury recommendations. Many of the
Greenbury recommendations have since
been incorporated in the Stock Exchange
Listing Rules or annexed to them as Best
Practice Provisions.

The Remuneration Committee can
confirm that the Company has complied
fully with Section A of the Best Practice
Provisions and further confirms that the
Committee has taken into account the
provisions of Section B in framing its
remuneration policy. Although these
provisions do not fully take effect for the
year under consideration, the Company
has decided to adopt them early.

1
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Pension benefits continue to be
disclosed by reference to the \;falue of
employers’ contributions pending a
decision by the Stock Exohange on the
revised basis for disclosures.
Remuneration of Executive Directors

The Remuneration Committeg’s objective
is to ensure that the remuneration
packages offered are competitive and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
top quality Executive Directors in the
overall interests of sharehoiders and
customers. The packages are reviewed
every year to ensure they are supportive of
the Group’'s business objectives and the
creation of shareholder vaiue. This year,
in the light of the Greenbury Report, we
have undertaken a thorough review of
all aspects of Executive Directors’
remuneraticn.

The Company uses the Hay method
of job evaluation to enable comparisons
to be made with jobs of similar size in
other companies. The evaluation process
takes into account not only the size of
compaﬁies but also their diversity,
complexity and international presence.

in addition, we take particular note of
the comparative position of other
cempanies in our own sector and in the
Utility sector generally.

Basic Salary Basic salary for each
Cirector is reviewed annually using data
drawn from the comparator groups and
the last full review was with effect from
1 July 1895. The salaries of the Chairman
of the Beard, the Group Chief Executive
and the Managing Director of the
Products and Services Division were not
increased. The salaries of the Group
Finance Director and the then Managing
Director of the Utilities Division were
increased Dy 7.4% and 3.5% respectively.
The
performance and the prevailing market

increases tcok account of

information on pay levels.
In March 12986, the Group Chief
Executive left the Company and

Sir Christopher Leaver

subsequently Sir Robert Clarke became -
full time Executive Chairman with
Mr W J Alexander becoming Group‘--—:
Managing Director (formerly thé
Managing Director of the Utilities Divisio‘n)‘.__s :"
The Committee reviewed the sralarry':‘.;_-.

levels for these two positions and in.the
light of the comparative data th

Chairman's salary was determined "at -
£233,666 and the salary of the Group -
Managing Director” determiried a
£185,000. both effective from 1 April 1996
Annual Bonus The targets for the 1995/96
bonus plan were set by the Remuneratio

Committee. Superior performance":is.
encouraged by providing challerirgirié.“_
performance goals, which must b
achieved before any bonus s payable,Th"
bonus plan includes targets finked to th
real growth in earning per share (EES
and divisional profit performance. ~

In 1995/96, EPS fell in relation to-
1994/95 and this, taken together with the -
profit before tax performance of -qthe-,

appropriate divisions, has resulted .in
benus awards ranging from nil to 6,8%
Details of bonus payments (which ‘are "
non-pensionable) are shown cn page‘24.

The Chairman does not participate
the bonus scheme. :

A revised annual bonus plan
Exacutive Directors has baen propiﬁs d
which includes demanding financial’
customer service performance Gritel
The plan (which will operate from 19\'
97} includes an element of"h‘_
participation and is subject to sfx_aré



approval at the Annual General Meeting.

Details have been circulated to
shareholders.
Long-Term Incentives In line with the
Remuneration Committes’s policy
decision, announced in the Interim
Statement to shareholders, no further
share options were granted to Executive
Directors in the year ending 31 March
1996, The Chairman had previously
decided not to participate in the executive
share option scheme.

A new long-term incentive pian based
on equity ownership has been proposed
which will replace share opticns for
Executive Directors. The new plan
includes challenging performance criteria
based upon a comparator group
comprising the top water and sewerage
companies and uses total shareholder
return {TSR) over a four year period as the
measure. The full award {up to 30% of
basic salary) will be paid if TSR places the
Company in first or second place. Third or
fourth place will reduce the award to one
half of the maximum entitlement and fifth
place will only pay one quarter. No shares
will vest if TSR places the Company below

fifth place in the comparator group.

Shareholder approval to the plan will be
sought at the Annual General Mesting
and details of the proposed plan (which
will operate from 1896/97) have been
circulated to shareholders.

Pensions The Company's policy is to offer
Executive Directors and Senior Executives
membership of the Senior Executive
Pension Scheme. This scheme provides a
‘top up' arrangement for benefits that
accrue through membership of the
contributory Thames Water Pension
Scheme.

The Senior Executive Pension Scheme
is a funded, Inland Revenue approved,
final salary, occupational pension schems
which together with the contributory
scheme provides:

{i) anormal pensian age of 60;

(i) an overall pension at normal pension
age of two-thirds of final pensionable
salary, subject to the completion of 20
years' pensionable service;

(i} life cover of four times pensionable
salary;

(iv) pensions payable in the event of ill
health; and

(v} spouse’s pension on death.

All of the pension scheme benefits are
subject to Inland Revenue limits. Where
benefit entitlements are restricted by
Inland Revenue rules then supplementary
unfunded arrangements are in place.
Such arrangements exist for the Group
Managing Director and were in place
during ihe year for the former Group Chief
Executive. Details are given on page 24.

The Chairman has an executive
pension plan, contributions to which are
through a salary sacrifice arrangement.
The pian assumes a normal retirement
age of 70 years.
Other Benefits Executive Directors are
eligibte to participate in the Group's
arrangements for executive benefits
which inciude the provision of a Company
car and payment of its operating
expenses including fuel, membership of
private medical and insurance schemes, &
financial advisory service and the
reimbursement of business telephone
charges.

No changes were made 1o the
structure of other benefits but the value
of car benefits was increased in line
with the scales issued by the Inland
Revenue.

Service Contracts

The Executive Directors, on privatisation,

were appointed on contracts prepared oy

the Government which included three-
year notice periods on the Company's
side and six months’ on the Directors.

In 1994/95 the three originat Executive

Directors voluntarily agreed, without

compensation, to reduce the Company's

notice peried for termination from

three vears to two. The subsequent
appointment 1o the Board of Mr W J
Alexander was also on the basis of 2 two-
year notice period.

in May 1986 the Executive Directors
agreed to a further reduction in notice
period to one year. In the event of
termination without notice, a payment of
compensation would be made
representing one year's remuneration and
benefits.

The Chairman’s service coniract was
originally for the two-year pericd
commencing 1 April 1994 subject to
12 months’ notice of sarly termination by
the Company. From April 19986 the
contract continues from vyear to year,
subject to 12 months’ notice by the
Company.

External Appointments

Your Company recognises that its
Directors are likely to be invited to
become non-Executive Directors of other
targe companigs and that exposure 1o
such non-Executive duties can broaden
experience and knowiedge, which will
benefit Thames Water. Executive Directors
are, therefore, allowed to accept cne non-
Executive appoiniment with the
Chairman’s consent provided it is not with
a competing company and is not likely to
lead to conflicts of interest. Executive
Directors are allowed to retain the fees
paid.

Fult details of the remuneration, share-
holdings and share options of the
Executive Directors in 1995/96 compared
with the previous year’s figures are shown
immediately following this report on
page 24.

N (G'QQQJ D&AD\( .

Sir Christopher Leaver, Committee chairman
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

Directors’ Remuneration provisicn of £94,000 at 31 March 1998,

Pensicn A simitar arrangement existed for .
Salary&  Annual Other 1998 1995 Contributions Mr Hoffman in the year to 31 March 1996 :
Fees Bonus  Benefits Total Total 1996 1895 and the charge to the profit and loss
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 .
account was £71,000 {1995 £37,000)
SirRobert Clarke 144 - 7 151 144 18 18 i total . f 216 ’
rovision
M B Hoffman maxing a total provision o 000 at
tieft 31.03.95) 250 _ 14 264 205 76 76 31 March 1996. This provision is expecteq
DJ Luffrum 142 - 9 151 164 43 41 tomeet all future liabilities in respect of Mr
W J Alexander 144 9 8 161 168 44 42  Hoffmans’ unfunded pension
W R Harper 102 - 10 112 117 31 30 arrangement.
782 9 48 839 888 212 207
Details of the fees paid to non-Executive Directors are shown on page 37 (note 5 to the accounts). Mr M R Hofftman
On 31 March 1998, Mr Hoffman left the
Pension Arrangements Scheme and the Thames Water Senior

Company. He had a service contract with

Ceontributions to the executive pension Executive Pension Scheme. In addition, the Gempany terminable by the Company

plan for Sir Robert Clarke are through a  provision is made by way of an unfunded

salary sacrifice arrangement and the commitment to ensure a pension on )
b g P Mr Hoffman as compensation for joss of

benefits to be provided at age 70 will be  retirement at age 60 of 58% of
those that can be provided from the value  Mr Alexander's basic salary in the last

of the fund at the time. fiscal year prior to retirement less benefits through the funded scheme were

Pensicn contributions for the in his previous employer's pension calcuiated in accordance with the

remaini i i i n . £ .
emaining Executive Directors are in  schemes. The charge to the profit and scheme’s rules and the Company's

respect of pension benefits which are loss account in respect of this was
funded by the Thames Water Pension £25,000 (1995: £21,000) making a total

normal practice.

on two years' notice. The Company paidto -

office an amount of £384,000 in cashand
in kind. His pension benefits provided

Directors’ interests in Shares Ordinary Shares Executive Share Options
Noticnal .
31.03.85 31.08398 1995 1986 Value Exercise Date When Expiry - -,

Number Number Number Number £000 Price Exercisable Date
Sir Robert Clarke 3,680 4,955 - - - - - -
W.J Alexander 14,531 14,588 18,0G0 18,000 38,0 347p 02.07.94 July 2001
31,000 31,000 43.4 418p 24.08.95 June 2002
22000 22,000 23.1 453p 08.12.97 Dec 2004
WR Harper 10,803 11,300 22000 22,000 464 347p 02.07.94 July 2001
11,000 11,000 222 356p 15.11.94 Nov 2001
9,000 9,000 9.5 453p 08.12.97 Dac 2004
D J Luffrum 19,943 20,656 6,000 8,000 18.5 283p 18.06.93 June 2000
25,000 25,000 52.8 347p 02.07.94 July 2001

13,000 13,000 283 356p 15.11.94 Nov 2001 -

18,000 18,000 18.9 453p 08.12.97 Dec 2004

M R Hoffman 68,272 69,686 10,000 10,000 29.1 283p 18.06.93 June 2000 .
{see note 5) 49,000 49,000 106.8 356p 15.11.94 Nov 2001
25,000 25,000 30.3 453p 08.12.97 Dec 2004
Notes

1. No executive share options were granted to or exercised by Executive Directors during the year; nor did any lapse.

2. Sir Robert Glarke has waived his right to be considered for executive share options.

3. Under the Thames Water Sharesave Scheme, which is avaifable for all empioyees, Sir Robert Clarke had 4,097 options at 31 March 1996 (1985:
4,097). The exercise price of these options is 421p. Mr Hoffman had 5,498 options (1995: 5,498) under the same scheme with exercise prices ranging
from 296p to 421p.

4, The notional value of the executive share options is based on the difference between the market price of the Company's shares at the close of

business on 14 June 19986 (558p) and the exercise price. The share price ranged from 470p to 581p during the year.

. (a) On 31 March 1996 Mr Hoffman left the Company and under the rules of both the Thames Water Executive Share Option Scheme and 1h9 '

Tharnes Water Sharesave Scheme he was eligible to exercise options granted under the schemes.
{b} The notional value of his options arising from the Thames Water Executive Share Option Scheme is based on the difference between the markat
price of the Company's shares at the close of business on 29 March 1996 (§74p) and the exercise price.
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Report of the Environmental Audit Committee by John Worlidge

The Environmental Audit Commitiee
somprising myself, Roger Carr and Bill
Harper, advises the Board on
snvironmental matters, We remain
sommitted to continuing the excelient
progress already achieved.

The Environmental Review 1996, which
comains externally verified data, details
our environmental performance including
progress on 49 published targets. |
summarise key performance areas below.

Wastewater Management

in February we received a Certificate of
Endorsement from 11 organisations for
river quality improvements to the River
Thames. Qur investment programme has
coniributed 10 the Thames being widely
recognised as the cleanest metropolitan
river in the world.

Wastewater performance during the
year was very good. Of qur 344 sewage
treatment works with effluent consents,
339 met their conditions. Regrettably we
were prosecuted five times for isclated
incidents of sewage escape and for
two other offences concerning waste
managemsent and dust nuisance. We will
continue to strive to meet our objective of

no prosecutions.

Water Quality

The quality of the drinking water we
supply is audited annually by the Drinking
Water Inspectorate. In tests, 98.9%
complied with the standards, showing a
0.5% improvement on last year.

Our ongoing education campaign on
pesticide use is achieving good results.
We have also negotiated ‘no spray’ sites
with Railtrack. Together these measures
have reduced the amount of pesticides in

our rivers.

Water Resources
Despite summer heatwave and winter
freeze we met customer demands for top

quality water without hosepipe bans or

drought orders. We managed our

abstractions during droughnt conditions

with no significant environmental effects.
Qur innovative Enfield-Haringey scheme
enables treated water to be stored
underground during winter until needed
for peak summer demands. The Thames
Wwater Ring Main was crucial to
maintaining supplies in London and
reduced the number of bursts.

Our summer campaign advising
customers on how to conserve water had
a very positive response. We also
anncunced a major initiative 10 halve
ieakage during the next ten years. This will
help us meet increasing demand for water
without additional abstraction.

Even during this dry year we honoured
our commitment to help safeguard dry
weather flows in the Darent and the Pang

which are of particular amenity value.

Environmental Stewardship

We successfully met our policy target
to improve energy efficiency by 10%
between 1962 and 1996. We were the first
water company to gain the prestigious
Energy Accreditation Certificate.

We won eight awards this year. In June
we received the Royal institute of
Chartered Surveyors Greening the Gity
award for the Greenway access scheme.
Our sustained environmental perform-
ance was also rewarded with a Gertificate
of Excellence in the Mars and Berkshire
Environmental Awards.

We continue to take an active role in
many community initiatives such as the
Global Action Plan and Croydon Schools
Chatllenge.

Nature Conservation
We undertook 22 habitat enhancement
projects with local partners over the year
and carried out many important nature
conservation and heritage projects.

We worked with Wiitshire Wildlife Trust

toc provide otter holts on three of our

sewage treatment works with the aim of

encouraging otters back to the River

We built a bat cave in the Pang Valley
and erected 100 bat boxes on Thames

We are determined tc improve further
our performance and management of key
operations which affect the environment
and our customers’ enjoyment of it. Our
cverriding objective is to be seen to be

good citizens of the community which we

John Worlidge, Committes chairman .

Thames Water has assisted the Wiitshire

Wiidiife Trust in building holls for otters 1o

encourage their retumn 1o the River Kennel.
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Report of the Audit Committee by John Thomson

The Audit Committee’s role is to assist the
Board in carrying out its responsibilities
reiating to internal centrol, external and
internal audit, accounting and external
reporting. Any non-Executive Board
member may attend the Committee’s
meetings. Three non-Executive Directors,
including myself as Chairman, comprise
the core membership.

There were six meetings of the
Committee during the year. Each meeting
had an agenda linked to events in the
Company's financial calendar.

In Apri} 1995 we considered the
principal accounting policies to be
adopted in closing the financial accounts
for 1994/95. We reviewed a report on the
work of the internal audit department for
that year and agreed the department's
forward work programme for 1995/36, We
also agreed changes tc the Group's
financial control manual.

In May and June the Committee met
cn two occasions specifically related to
the release of the financial results for
1984/95.

In September 1895 we reviewed the
report by the Company’s external auditors
(Coopers & Lybrand) on matters arising

from their year-end audit of the accounts.

Our review included consideration of the
adequacy of management responses to
the external auditors’ recommendations
and consequeént actions planned. We also
discussed and agreed a programme of
management self-certification relating to
the internal financiat control environment
and subsequently reviewed the results.

A further
considered the interim results prior to

meeting in QOctober
their release.

At the final meeting, in January 1998,
the external auditors’ planned apprcoach
and fee proposal for the audit of the

Internal financial control

The Board of Directors has overall
responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal financial contro! and has reviewed
its effectiveness. The key features of the
internal financial control system that has
operated throughecut the year are
described under the following headings.

Control Environment

The Board has in place an organisational
structure with clearly defined lines of
authority and accountability. This is
supported by a Financial Control Policies
and Procedures manual which is reviewed
and updated annually. The manual
contains, infer alia, sections setting out
policies and procedures to be followed in
business planning, capital expenditure
approval, sales tenders, treasury
management, insurance and risk
management.

THAMES WATER

Identification and Evaluation of

Risks and Control Objectives

Risk areas are reviewed on a regular basis
by executive management and key risks
and risk management precgrammes are
subject to consideration by the Board.

Information and Communication

The Group operates a comprehensive
annual budgeting and financial reporting
system which compares profits and cash
performance with budget on a monthly
basis. Revised forecasts for the year are
prepared quarterly. At each monthly
the Board
performance of the major business units

meeting reviews the

across the Group.

Control Procedures

There are comprehensive policies and
procedures in place which cover
authorisation, segregation of duties,
recording of data and physical security.

John Thomson

accounts for 1995/96 was reviewed. -
We also satisfied ourselves that the
appropriate progress was being made by
management to deal with matters raised "

in the audit reparts referred to previoU's!y:f; '

In

John Thomson, Committee chairman

Moo

Monitoring and Corrective Action
All business units ¢omplete self
certification questionnaires to qohffrm
compliance with specified standard
internal financial control, These are
reviewed anrually by the Audit Comrﬁitfee

The Group has an established ihier;wa
audit department which carr?e‘s"::éut
reviews of business and contr
procedures as part of a broadly ﬁaSed
programme of work. This internallﬁéﬁ&t
programme is constructed using -risk
assessment techniques to develop
appropriate cycle of activity rtf;tifié'
having regard to the key aspects of the
business.

The plans and results of _thé fintér"ri'af
audit activities are reviewed by t.hé"A'U'

only reasonable, but not abso
assurance against material miisstate
or loss.



Statement Of the DireCtOI'S, responSibﬂiﬁeS for the preparation of financial statements

Company law requires the Directors to
prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the prcfit for that
year. In preparing the financial statements
the Directors are required {o:

« select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently

. make judgements and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent

. state whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed, subject 1o

any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements ‘

« prepare the financial statements on
the geing concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Group
will continue in busingss.

The Directors are responsible for
keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group
and to enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985.

They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and hence for
taking reascnable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

By Order of the Board

b B

David Badcock, Group Company Secretary
21.June 1896

Report of the Auditors to the members of Thames Water Plc

We have audited the financial statements
on pages 28 to 51.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors
and Auditors

As described above, the Company's
Directors are responsibie for the
preparation of financial statements. It is
our responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on our audit, on those
statements and to report our opinion
toyou.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance
with Auditing Standards issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and

disciosures in the financial statements. it

also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements
made by the Directors in preparation of
the financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate
to the Company's circumstances,
consistently applied and adeguaisly
disclosed.

We plarned and performed our audit
50 as to obtain all the infcrmation and
explanations which we cecnsidered
necessary in order o provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reascnable
assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatermnent,
whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the
financial statements,

Opihion

In our opinion the financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at
31 March 1996 and of the profit, total
recognised gains and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended and have
been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1885,

QQ%Q_}'D A
Coopers & Lybrand
Chartered Accountants and Registered
Auditors

London
21 June 1996
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Consolidated profit and loss account

Year ending 31 March

Turnover

Cperating costs

QOperating profit

{Loss)/profit from interests in associated undertakings

Profit on the sale of fixed assets

Other non-operating exceptional items:

— Provision for losses con the sale/closure of operations {0 be discontinued

— Goodwill write back on ¢perations to be discontinued

— Surplus on the book value of operations sotd or closed

- Goodwill write back on operaticns sold or closed
income from other investments

Profit cn ordinary activities before interest and tax

Interest

w

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial year
Dividends

Retained profit transferred to reserves

Earnings per ordinary share
Adjustment for other non-operating exceptional items

Adjusted earnings per ordinary share

Statement of total recognised gains

Year ending 31 March

Profit for the financial year

Currency translation differences

Total recognised gains for the financial year

THAMES WATER

Group
1996 1996 1995
Note £m £m £m
1,193.6 1,1736
4 (827.9) (816.0)
365.7 3578
(0.1) 0.1
6 0.2 1.7
(74.3)
(22.9) (97.2) -
7.6
(5.4) 2.2 _
7 6.8 C.6
277.6 360.¢
8 {48.9) (56.3)
228.7 303.7
9 (25.2) {21.5)
203.5 282.2
12 (114.2) (101.2)
89.3 181.0
13 50.7p 713p
13 23.6p -
13 74.3p 71.3p
1996 1995
£m om
203.5 282.2
1.2) (03)
=
202.3 281.9

——




~onsolidated and Company balance sheets

Group ' * Company
1996 1085 1996 1965
. 31 March Note £m tm £m tm
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 15 3,123.4 2,808.1 0.2 0.2
investments 16 17.5 28 938.1 507.8
3,140.9 28009 938.3 508.0
Current assets
Stocks and work in progress 17 39.8 359 - -
Debtors 18 284.0 255.3 146.7 787
Investrments 19 218.0 188.7 114.2 1384
Cash at bank and in hand 57.6 321 33.2 12.0
599.4 510.0 294.1 226.8
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 20 (590.7) (532.8) (205.4) (122.4)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 8.7 (22.8) 88.7 104.4
Total assets less current liabilities 3,149.6 2.878.1 1,027.0 6124
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 21 (773.8) (718.5) (118.7) (87.7)
Convertible debt 22 (81.8) {81.4) (81.8) (81.4)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 24 (123.9) (43.09 {1.5} {0.5)
Net assets 2,170.3 2,035.2 825.0 4428
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital - 25 404.0 399.7 404.0 399.7
Share premium 26 8.2 6.2 8.2 6.2
Reserves and retained profits 27 1,758.1 1,629.3 412.8 36.8
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,170.3 2,035.2 825.0 ‘ 442.8

The notes on pages 32 to 51 form part of these accounts.

The accounts were approved by the Board on 21 June 1896.

Sir Robert Glarke Chairman

D J Luffrum Group Finance and Planning Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Year ended 31 March
Net cash inflow from operating activities {note b)

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received

Interest paid

Interest element of finance lease rental payments
Dividends paid

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance

Taxation
UK corporation tax paid
Cverseas tax paid

Net cash outflow from taxation

Investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Sale of subsidiary undertakings net of
cash and cash equivalents (note d)

Purchase of fixed asset investments

Sale of fixed asset investments

Sales of tangible fixed assets

Capital contributions received

Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash inflow before finanging

Financing

Issue of ordinary share capital

Long term loans

Repayment of long term loans

Expenses of issuing shares

Short term investments

Short term borrowings

Capital element of finance lease rental payments

Net cash outflow from financing

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {note a)

Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

Shert term investments

Bank overdrafts

Loans of fess than three months' maturity

{Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

THAMES WATER

Group
1996 1995
Em £m
444.0 486.5
18.6 13.1
(55.8) {58.9)
(12.8) {i2.7)
(90.2) (74.7)
{140.2) {130.7)
(21.6) {(18.7)
{0.6} {0.6)
(22.2) (19.3)
(287.0) {281.4)
18.7 -
(14.8) 0.8)
- 1.6
3.6 4.4
24.38 41.1
(254.7) (235.1)
26.9 101.4
3.5 540
- 25.0
{10.3) (30.8) -
(0.4) {0.5)
{88.4) {37.9)
{(19.2) 18.8
(4.9) {7.9)
(119.7) (27.9) -
(92.8) 735
1996 1995
£m Em ]
57.6 32.1
39.1 96.2
(40.7) (34.8) ‘
{62.8) 75
{6.8) 860 .
(92.8)




Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Operating profit

Depreciation

increase in stocks
(Increase)/decrease in debtors
increase in creditors

Increase in long term provisions
Other

Net cash inflow from operating activities

The movements above exclude the non-operating exceptional provisions.

Analysis of changes in finanging during the year

Balance at 1 April 1984

Cash inflows from financing

Shares issued for non-cash consideration
Finange leases raised during the year

Foreign exchange and other unrealised items

Balance at 31 March 1895

Gash inflows/{outflows) from financing
Shares issued for non-cash consideration
Finance leases raised curing the year

Foreigh exchange and other unreaiised items

Balance at 31 March 1996

1996 1998

£m £m

365.7 357.6

101.0 89.0

(6.1) (1.8

(37.5) 27.9

12.2 15.3

74 0.4

1.3 (1.9)

444.0 486.5

Share capital and Loans and Current asset

share premium finance leases investments

£m £m £m
397.3 738.2 {55.2)
49 61 (37.9)
37 - -

- 46.9 -

- (3.5) 26
405.9 787.7 (©0.5)
3.2 {34.4) (88.4)

3.1 - -

- 50.8 -

- 0.4 -
412.2 813.5 . (178.9)

The 8.1m shares issued for non-cash consideration represent shareholders' election to take shares rather than cash dividends

following the offer by the Company of a scrip dividend alternative.

Finance leases amounting to £50.8m were contracted for during the year 1o fund capital plant, equipment and vehicles.

Sale of subsidiaries

Fixed assels
Stock
Debtors

Provisions

Profit on disposal

Satisfied by cash

The businesses soid during the year had a cash outflow from operations of £1.6m and paid £0.2

1996

18.7

[E——

m in respect of overseas taxation.

THAMES WATER
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Notes to the accounts

1 Principal accounting policies
A summary of the more important Group accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, is set out below.

a Basis of preparation The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention and with applicable
accounting standards in the United Kingdom and, except for the treatment of certain capital contributions and retranslation of long
term foreign currency liabilities, with the Companies Act 1985. An explanation of these departures from the requirements of the Act is
given in note 1{e) and (j} below.

b Basis of consolidation The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss account from the date of their
acquisition or up to the date of their disposal. In the event that the accounts of subsidiary undertakings are drawn up to a year end
different from that of the parent company, appropriate adjustments are made to the Group accounts to reflect any significant
transactions in the intervening period. Intra-group sales and profits are eliminated on consolidation.

¢ Turnoverwhich excludes value added tax or equivalent sales tax, represents the income receivable in the ordinary course of business
for goods and services provided and, in respect of contract work in progress, the value of work carried out.

d Tangible fixed assets comprise:

* |nfrastructure assets (being mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservoirs and sludge pipetines);

» Landfill sites; and

+ Other assets (including properties, overground plant and equipment).

i Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems. Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases in capacity or
enhancements of the network is treated as additions. Expenditure on maintaining the operating capability of the network
in accordance with defined standards of service is charged as an operating ¢ost and is classified as infrastructure renewais
expenditure.
No depreciation is charged on infrastructure assets because the network of systems is required to be maintained in perpetuity and
therefore has no finite econemic life.

it Landfill sites are included at cost less accumulated depreciation. The provision for depreciation is based upon the average cost
per cubic metre of void space consumed from the deposit of waste. Provision is made for site restoration where it is anticipated
that expenditure will e required at the end of the life of the site.

iii Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation,
Freehold and long leasehold land is not depreciated. Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until they are
commissioned. Other assets are depreciated evenly over their estimated economic lives, which are principally as follows:

Buildings:

+ Qperational structures 40-80 years
+ (ther 30-60 years
Fixed and mobile plant 20-40 years

Vehicles, computers, fixtures and fittings ~ 4-10 years

e Capital contributions received in respect of infrastructurs assets have been deducted from the cost of fixed assets. This is not in
accordance with Schadule 4 to the Companies Act 1985 which requires fixed assets {o be stated at their purchase price without
deduction of contributions which are accordingly accounted for as deferred incorne. This departure from the requirement of the Act
is, in the opinion of the Directors, necessary for the accounts to give a true and fair view because infrastructure assets do not have a
finite life and are not depreciated. Accordingly related capital contributions would not be recognised in the profit and loss account.
The effect of the departure on the value of tangible fixed assets is disclosed in note 15(i).

Where material, contributions received towards the cost of other assets are accounted for as deferred income and released to the
profit and loss account over the useful fives of the assets.

f Leased assetsWhere assels are financed by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially alt the risks and rewards of ‘
ownership of an asset to the lessee (finance leases), the assets ara treated as if they had been purchased and the corresponding L
capital cost is shown as an obligaticn to the lessor. Leasing payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and finance :
costs, the capital element reducing the obligation to the lessor and the finance chargas being written off to the profit and loss
account over the period of the lease in relation to the assets' written down values. The assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease period.

All other leases are regarded as operating leases. Rental costs arising under operating leases arg expensed in the year in which they
arg incurred.
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Notes to the accounts

Investments

Fixed asset investments

i inthe accounts of the Company Investrments held as fixed assetls are stated at cost less provisions for permanent diminution
in value.

ii Inthe Group accounts Interests in associated undertakings are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The
consolidated profit and loss account inciudes the Group's share of the pre-tax results and attributabie taxation of the associated
undertakings based on audited financiat statements for the year.In the consolidated balance sheet the interests in associated
undertakings are shown as the Group's share of the net assets, excluding goodwill, of the associated undertakings.

Current asset investments Invesiments held as current assets are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Stocks and work in progress with the exception of long term contract work in progress, are valued at the iower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost includes labour, materials, transport and an element of overheads,

Long term gontracts are included in the profit and loss account by recording turnover and related costs as contract activity

progresses, Profit attributable to turnover to date is included whera the outcome of the contract can be foressen with reasonable

cartainty. Full provision is made for losses on unprofitable contracts.

Long term contract work in progress is stated at net cost less foresecable losses and progress payments received and receivable.

The amount by which turnover is in excess of payments on account is separataly disclosed within debiors as amounts recoverable

on contracts. Progress payments received in excess of costs less foreseeable losses are disclosed in creditors. Where foreseeable

losses exceed net costs the excess is disclosed in provisions for liabilities and charges.

Pension costs The majority of the Group's employees belong t¢ pension schemes which are funded by beth empioyers' and

employees’ contributions and which are of the definad benefit type. The pension cost is assessed in accordance with the advice of

an independent qualified actuary to recognise the expected cost of providing pensions on a systematic and rational basis over the
expeotéd remaining service lives of emplcyees. Any difference between the cost charged and the amounts paid by the Group is
treated as a prepayment or accrual.

Foreign currencies All iransactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the actual rate of exchange

ruling on the date of the transaction, Assets and liabilities, including long term liabilities, in foreign currencies are translated inte

sterling at rates of exchangs ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences arising are dealt with in the profit and loss
account. This treatment is required by Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP) number 20 in order 10 give a {rue and fair
view of the Group's result-s. Compliance with SSAFP 20 overrides Scheduie 19 Paragraph 12 of the Companies Act 1985 which states
that only profits realised at the balance shaet date should be included in the profit and loss account. The effect of curvency
retranslation is disclosed in note 4. The results of overseas subsidiary undertakings are translated at average rates of exchange for
the year. Differences arising from the translation of year end assets and liabiiities at closing rates together with the restatemnent of
opening balance sheets of overseas subsidiary undertakings at closing rates are dealt with through reserves together with exchange
differences on the translation of foreign currency borrowings funding such investmeants.

Research and development expenditure is charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which it is incurred.

Taxation The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year as adjusted for disallowable and non-taxable items. Tax deferred

or accelerated is accounted for in respect of all material timing differences to the extent that it is probable that a liability or asset will

crystallise, Provision is made at the rate which is expected to be applied when the liability or asset is expected to crystallise. In the

Company, provision is made at such rate as reflects the anticipated consideration payable or receivable in respect of any future

Group relief claims or surrenders.

Provision for insurance liabilities Provision is mads for known and estimated fiabilities arising from uninsured claims against the

Group and for claims against its wholly owned insurance company.

Goodwill arising on acquisition, being the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of subsidiary and

associated undertakings acquired, is written off against reserves in the year in which it arises. The profit or loss on disposai of a

previously acquired subsidiary or associated undertaking is determined by including, where raaterial, the attributable amount of

purchased goodwill previously gliminated against reserves.

Interest interest payable is written off to the profit and loss account as it is incurred except that relating t¢ monies borrowed

te finance:

« specific long term contracts which is included in the cost of long term contract work in progress; interest receivable from the
ternporary investment of these monies is credited to the cost of long term contract work in progress

» the purchase of tangible fixed assets by associated undertakings established to manage Build, Qperate and Transfer schemes.

THAMES WATER
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Notes to the accounts

2 Continuing operations/other non-operating exceptional items

Following a strategic review of its businesses, the Group has decided to implement a managed withdrawal from stand alone design
and construction activities and develop only those products and services businesses which are closely related to core utility strengths,
As a consequence, non-operating exceptional items of £95m (before and after tax) have been provided relating 1o the write-down of
assets, recrganisation costs and the write back of goodwiil previcusty written ¢ff t¢ Reserves, As the implementation of this decision
was not complete at the date these accounts were approved, Financial Reporting Standard number 3 requires these activities to be
classified as continuing. The analysis below shows turnover and profit before interest and tax analysed between operations to be

retained, those that were sold or closed during the year and those to be discontinued.

Operations tc be retained
Operations scld or closed during the year
Operations to be discontinued

Other non-operating exceptional items

3 Segmentai analysis

Turnover

1996
£m

1,107.3
15.5
70.8

1,193.6

1,193.6

Profit before

interest and tax

1996
£m

401.0
{0.4)
{28.0)

372.6
{95.0)

277.6

The segments by class of business are: Utilities, the regulated water and wastewater business; International Operations and
Process Contracting, international water and wastewater process design and contracting and the marketing of technical managerial
services. Products and Services, the development and manufacture of products for the freatment of water, wastewater and industrial
process fluids, and the provision of undarground, waste management and urban environmental services; Other activities, those
carried out by the Company in managing the Group; Insurance and property.

Turnover 1996 1995
Intra-segment Inter-segment Third parties Intra-segment Inter-segment ‘Third parties
By class of business £m £m £m £m £m £
Utitities - 1.7 973.9 - 4.0 915.1
Internationat Operations and
Process Contracting:
- to be retained 1.0 0.1 741 - - 1.4
- to be discontinued 3.3 9.4 70.8 0.3 10.2 1158
Products and Services:
- ¢ be retained 2.9 29.5 108.5 1.5 237 102.5
- gold or closed - - 15.5 0.5 0.1 29.2
Insurance and Property - 15.6 17.8 - 14.2 9.6
Total 7.2 56.3 1,193.6 2.3 52.2 1,173.6
1996 1995
Geographical segment Intra-segment Inter-segment Third parties Intra-segmant Inter-segment Third parties
by origin £m £m £m £m £m £m
UK 57.0 1.7 1,096.2 52,2 1.5 1,049.5
Continental Europe - - 31.0 - - 406
Americas 0.3 0.4 46.3 0.1 0.4 410
Africa - - 4.9 - - 4.2
Asia Pacific 3.2 0.9 15.2 0.3 - 38.3
Total : 60.5 3.0 1,193.6 52.6 1.9 1,1736

L)

Turnover by destination does not materially differ from turnover by origin.
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Segmental analysis (continued)

Profit before tax

Utilities

International Operaticns and Process Cantracting:

—to be retained

—to be discontinued

Products and Services:
—to be retained

— soid or closed

Insurance and Property

Other activities

Other non-operating exceptional items:

International Operations and Process Contracting

Products and Services

Profit on ordinary activities before interest and taxation

Interest

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Net assets

Utilities

International Operations and Process Contracting:

—to be retained

- to be discontinued

Products and Services:
—to be retained

- sold or closed

Insurance and Property

Other activities

Net debt

Net assets

1986 1996 1995 1895
£m £m £m £m
393.1 364.0
{10.0} 5.9)
(28.0) (38.0) 6.0) (11.9)
4.9 3.0
(0.4) 4.5 0.6 36
15.6 4.7
{2.8) (0.4}
372.6 360.0
{97.2)
2.2 {95.0) -
277.6 360.0
(48.9} (56.3)
. 228.7 303.7
1996 1996 1995 1995
£m £m £m £m
2,934.7 2,691.9
8.2 2.1
{49.3) 41.1) 14,2 18.3
24.3 26.7
- 243 4.3 31.0
0.7 06
(106.9) {93.4)
2,811.7 2,646.4
(641.4) 611.2)
2,170.3 2,035.2
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3 Segmental analysis {continued) Profit (loss) before tax Net assets {liabilities)
1996 1995 1996 1995
By geographical segment £m £m £m em
UK 399.8 359.2 2,833.6 2,617.3
Continental Europe (17.4) (3.0) (37.8) 19.2
Americas {0.6) 2.8 5.3 12.8
Africa - 0.2 {0.9) ©.1)
Asia Pacific (9.2) 08 115 (2.8)
372.6 360.0 2,811.7 2.646.4
Other non-operating exceptional items (95.0) -
277.6 360.C 2,811.7 2,646.4
Interest (48.9) (56.3)
Net debt (641.4) 811.2)
Total ) 228.7 303.7 2,170.3 2,035.2

Segmental result before tax and net assets of associated undertakings are not separately disclosed since they are not material to the Croup.

4 Operating costs 1996 1995
Analysis of operating costs by type of expense £m £m
Manpower costs 2486 24789
Materials and consumables 109.3 131.2
QOther operating charges 352.7 3499
Infrastructure renewals charge 37.5 27.7
Depregiation:

* owned assets ' 89.6 77.7
s assets held under finance leases 11.4 11.3

Rentals under operating leases:

+ hire of plant and machinery 4.7 3.9

= other 3.1 41

Research and development 8.4 7.7

Foreign currency gains (see note 1j) 0.4 2.1)
865.7 8593 -

Own work capitalised (37.8) (43.3)

827.9 816.0

{i) Included in octher operating charges are: 1996 1995

£m £m

I

Auditors' remuneration in respect of:

» auditwork 0.7 0.7

« other statutory and regulatory requirements 0.1 0.1

*+ non-audit work: UK 0.3 0.2 _
:overseas - 01

1.1

(i) Included in auditors' remuneration is £70,000 in respect of audit fees incurred by the Company in 1996 (1995: £60,000).
{ili} The foreign currency losses in 1996 are net of unrealised gains and losses of £0.2m and £0.6m respectively.
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Notes to the accounts

Information regarding Directors and employees

The Company's policy regarding the remuneration of the Chairman and Executive Directors is set out in the report of the

Remuneration Committee on pages 22 to 23 of the Annual Report together with details of the remuneration of individual

Executive Directors and their shareholdings in the Company on page 24,

The remuneration for non-Executive Directors consists of fees for their services in connection with Bo

ard and Board Committee

meetings. Fess are reviewed biennially by the Chairman and Executive Directors and were increased from £18,500 to £19,500 from 1

July 1895, In the case of Sir Christopher Leaver fees receivable in his role as Vice Chairman remain unchanged at £45,000.The review

used external comparative data for companies of a similar size. Non-Executive Directors do not have contracts of service, are not

eligibte for pension scheme membership and do not participate in any of the Group’s bonus, share option, incentive schemes or

other benefits.

Fees Number of Shares at 31 March
1996 1985 1996 1995

Non-Executive Directors: £000 £000
Sir Christopher Leaver 45 45 3,931 3,931
R M Carr 19 8 3,000 3,000
Sir Peter Harrop : 8 19 - 2,368
AJHobson 19 8 1,000 1,000
JMThomson 19 19 2,000 2,000
E JWorlidge 19 19 2,389 2,268

The 1995 non-Executive fees for R M Carr and AJ Hobson are for a part ysar since they were appointed with effect from 1 November

1994. Sir Peter Harrop retired on 25 July 1995,

Directors’ remuneration in total
Fees for non-Executive Directors
Remuneration of Executive Directo'rs (see page 24)

Compensation for loss of office

Total

Scale of Executive and non-Executive Directors’ remuneration {excluding pension contributions}
= £ 5001 -¢ 10,000
£ 15,001 ~-£ 20,000
£ 40,001 - £ 45,000
£110,001 — £115,000
£115,001 — £120,000
£140,001 - £145,000
£150,001 — £155,000
£155,0601 — £160,000
£160,001 - £165,000
£165,001 — £170,000
£260,001 - £265,000
£290,001 — £205,000

Transactions with Directors and officers

1996 1995
£000 £000
130 118
1,051 1,085
384 ) -
1,565 1,213
1996 1995
number number
1 2

4 3

1 1

1 -

- 1

- 1

2 -

1 1

- 1

1 -

There are no transactions or arrangements which are reguired to be disclosed under the provisions of the Companies Act 1985.
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5 Information regarding Directors and employees (continued)

1996 1995
Employee information em £m
Group employment costs including Executive Directors’ remuneration were:

+ Salaries and wages 2121 211.3
+ Social security costs 21.2 20.2
» Pansion contributions (note 30) 19.2 181
Total 252.5 249.6

Total employment costs contain £2.3m (1995: £1.7m) and £1.6m (1995: nil} which ares included in the infrastructure renewals charge

and Research and Development costs respectively in note 4.

Average weekly number of persons employed by the Group,

1996 1995
including Executive Directors, analysed by class of business number number
Utilities 6,338 6,673
international Operations and Process Contracting 1,519 1,135
Products and Services 2,438 2,603
Other activities 65 62
Total . 10,360° 10,473

6 Profit on the sale of fixed assets

Profits from the sate of fixed assets of £0.2m (1995: £1.7m) are in respect of asset sales made by Group companies to third parties.

Incorme from land dispesals made via the Group’s property development undertakings have been included in turnover.

1996 1995

7 Income from other investments £m em
Bealised/unrealised gains and losses on fixed interest short term investments 341 (2.6
Net rents receivable 1.6 3.2
Miscellaneous 2.1 -
6.8 0.6

Unrealised gains, up fo the lower of cost or net realisable value, amounting to £0.7m have been written back during the year.

THAMES WATER
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Notes to the accounts

1986 - 1905
Interest £m £m
Bank loans, overdraits and other loans:

« Repayable within five years otherwise than by instalments (2.1) (3.3)
« Repayable within five years by instalments (2.6) {1.5)
« Notwholly repayable within five years {51.1) ‘ {52.1}
Finance charges in respect of finance leases (12.8) (12.7)
Other finance charges (0.7 0.8}
Interest payable and similar charges (69.3) {70.4)
Interest receivable 20.4 141

Total (48.9) {56.3}

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

No liability to UK mainstream corporation tax arises on the result for the year due to the availabifity of capital allowances, and tax
losses brought forward. The taxation charge in the profit and ioss account comprises advance corporation tax (ACT) deemed
irrecoverable of £24.6m (1995: £20.8m) together with overseas taxes of £0.6m (1995: £0.7m). The ACT remains available to reduce
future UK corporation tax liabilities.

Deferred taxation

The Group's medium and long-term plans for capital investment together with the capita! attowances available in respect of the asset
base transterrad from Thames Water Authority on vesting indicate that for the foreseeable future the amount of tax allowances in
respect of eligible plant and machinery will exceed the depreciation on existing and new assets. Accordingly, no provision for
deferred taxation is required in the Group accounts,

Group
1996 1985
An analysis of amounts unprovided is as follows: £m £m
Accelerated capital aliowances: .-
« Infrastructure assets ) 272.2 245.2
¢ Other assets 314.9 2833
Other timing differences {12.5) (18.5)
Losses (2.1) (45.2)
Advance corporation tax {141.6) (117.3)

430.9 347.5

As infrastructure asseis are not depreciated, deferred taxation will crystallise only in the event of any disposal of these assets at
armounts in excess of their written down vaiue for tax purposes. In the opinion of the Directors the likelihood of such a Yiability
crystallising in the future is remote.

Profit for the financial year

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the sharehelders, £4777m (1995: £64.0m) has been dealt with in the accounts of the
Company. A separate profit and loss account for the Company has not been presented as permitted by Section 230 of the
Companies Act 1985.
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1996 1995

Dividends pence per share £m pence per share em
Interim 9.2 37.0 8.2 a2
Final proposed 19.1 77.2 1741 68.4
28.3 114.2 253 101.2

Certain shareholders have elected to receive shares in lieu of current and future dividends. Details of shares allotted under the scrip

dividend option during the year ended 31 March 1996 are shown in note 25.

1996 1995
Earnings per ordinary share Net Nil Net Nil
Profit for the financial year £203.5m £228.1m £282.2m £303.0m
Earnings per ordinary share 50.7p 56.8p 71.3p 76.5p
Other non-operating exceptional items 23.6p 23.6p
Adiusted earnings per ordinary share 74.3p 80.4p

On the net bésis. earnings per ordinary share have been calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year by the weighted

average nurnber of ordinary shares in issue during the year (401.6m).

On the nil distribution basis, profit for the financial year is stated before the charge for irrecoverable ACT as this arises solely from the

declaration of the dividend.

There would be no significant dilution of earnings per ordinary share from the exercise of outstanding share options and the

conversion of the £82m Convertible debt.

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Profit for the financial year
Dividends

Exercise of share options

Value of shares issued in lieu of dividends
Share issue. expensas

Foreign exchange movements

Goodwill written back/(off)

Shareholders’ funds at 1 April 1995

Sharehoiders' funds at 31 March 1996

THAMES WATER

1996 1995

£m £m
203.5 282.2
(114.2) {101.2)
89.3 181.0
3.5 5.4
15.5 17.0
(0.3} (0.5)
(1.2) 0.3)
28.3 0.2)
135.1 202.4
2,035.2 1,8328
2,170.3 2,035.2
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Notes to the accounts

Group Company
Land & Infrastructure Plant & Plant &
Tangible fixed assets buildings assets equipment Total equipment
£m £m £m £m £m
Net cost at 1 April 1995 1,233.7 1,079.3 - 1,104.3 34173 0.5
Foreign exchange adjustments - - 0.7 0.7 -
Additions at cost 90.5 70.0 1885 3490 0.1
Disposal of supsidiaries 2.9} - (5.0} (7.9) -
Disposals (1.1) 0.2) (12.8) (14.1) -
Reclassifications (10.6) - 10.6 - -
Capital contriputions ’ - {16.2) - (16.2) -
Net cost at 31 March 1996 1,300.6 1,132.9 1,286.3 3,728.8 0.6
Depreciation at 1 Aptil 1985 228.8 - 292.6 519,2 0.3
Foreign exchange adjustments - - 0.4 0.4 -
Provided during the year 209 - 80.1 101.0 0.1
Disposal of subsidiaries {0.8) - (3.7 (4.5} -
Disposals 0.4 - (10.3} (10.7) -
Reclassifications {1.1) - 1.1 - -
Depreciation at 31 March 1996 245.2 - 360.2 605.4 0.4
Net book value
At 31 March 1996 1,064.4 1,132.9 926.1 3,123.4 0.2
At 31 March 1995 1,007.1 1,079.3 811.7 2,898.1 0.2

in order to give a true and fair view (note 1e} the cost of infrastructure assets is stated after the deduction of capital contributions

amounting 1o £121.3m (1995: £105.1m).

The net book value of land and buildings is analysed as foliows:

Group
1996 19895
£m £m
Freehold land and buildings 1,032.9 993.1
Leaseholds: over 50 years 26.3 9.1
under 50 years 5.2 4.9
1,064.4 1,007.1
No depreciation has been charged on freehold iand included at a cost of £11.6m (1995 £11.2m}.
Details of the Group's tangible fixed assets which are held under finance leases are:
Cost Net book value
1996 ' 1995 1996 1995
£m £m £m £m
Plant and equipment 259.6 198.0 212.2 161.4

Tangible fixed assets at 31 March 1996 include £322.2m (1995: £346.9m) of assets in the course of construction.

THAMES WATER
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Group Company

Investment in undertakings

Interests in associated undertakings subsidiary associated

16 Fixed asset investments £m £m £m
Value at 1 April 1895 2.8 507.8 ) -
Foreign exchange adjustments - 2.2 -
Additions 151 549.3 75
Amounts written off (0.3) (128.7) -
Share of profits for the year (0.1 - -
Value at 31 March 1996 17.5 930.6 7.5

42
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Group
The cost of the Group’s interests in associated undertakings at 31 March 1996 amounted to £21.7m (1995: £6.6m). The Group's
share of post-acquisition accumuiated losses at 31 March 1996 was £0.6m (1995: £0.5m). The associated undertakings are unlisted.

Company

Investments amounting to £56.8m were made by the Company during the year through subsidiary and asscciated undertakings to
assist in the development of the Group's non-regulated trading activities, in addition, the Company invested a further £500m in cash
in its wholly owned subsidiary, Thames Water Utilities Limited.

The Company's-investments were written down by £128.7m. The write down follows a strategic review by the Board which has resulted
in a decision to sell or close some Group companies. This has no effect on the consotidated results of the Group.

Group
1996 1998
Stocks and work in progress £m £m
Raw materfals and consumables 17.8 189
Woerk in progress 16.0 6.5
Finished geods and goods for resale 5.8 56
Payment on account of raw materials 0.2 4.9
Total 39.8 35.9
Work in progress includes long-term contract balances as follows:
Net cost less foreseeable losses 167.2 1153
Applicable payments on account {(170.1) {114.8)
Total {2.9) 05

Applicable payments on account in excess of, or below, net costs less foreseeable losses are included in creditors: amounts falling

due within one year cr debtors: amounts recoverable on contracts respectively.

The Company has no stocks and work in progress.
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Debtors

Due within one year:

Trade debtors

Amounts recoverable on contracts
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Cther debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

Infrastructure renewals expenditure

Due after more than one year.

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Prepayments and accrued income

Other debtors

Total

Current asset investments

Fixed term deposits and certificates of deposit

Eixed and floating interest rate sécurities

Total

The market value of invesiments is not significantly different from cost.

Group Company

1996 1986 1996 1995
£m &m £m £m
175.1 161.3 - -
12.0 7.9 - -
- - 145.6 48.4
14.8 10.8 - -
73.3 61.7 1.1 15
1.8 1.4 - —
277.0 243.1 146.7 49.9
5.9 106 - -

- - - 26.8

0.4 05 - -
0.7 14 - -
284.0 255.3 146.7 78.7
Group Company

1996 1995 1996 1995
£m om £m £m
102.0 1391 46.0 126.1
116.0 47.8 68.2 12.0
218.0 186.7 114.2 138.1

THAMES WATER
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Bank toans

Bank overdrafts

Otherloans

Obligations under finance leases
Progress claims and advance payments
Trade creditors:

+ operating

+ capital

Bills of exchange payabie

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Advance corporation tax

Taxation and soctal security

Accruais and deferred income

Other creditors

Proposed dividend

Total

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one vear

Bank loans

Other loans

Obligations under finance leases
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Deferred income

Other creditors

Total

Convertible debt

Group Company
1996 1985 1996 1995
£m Em £m £m
64.4 275 32.7 -
40.7 34.8 13.9 -
0.6 0.8 - -
2.5 7.2 - -
94.8 878 - -
58.9 62.0 - -
87.5 85.1 - -
- 01 - -
- - 29.1 258
27.9 24.8 27.9 24.8
6.3 7.1 - -
1208 118.9 0.3 -
8.8 7.7 24.0 3.0
77.5 69.0 77.5 69.0
590.7 532.8 205.4 122.4
Group - Company
19986 1995 ’ 1996 1995
£m £m €m £m
221.3 2258 - -
289.0 2952 - -
216.7 167.1 - - -
- - 118.7 87.7
36.9 28.9 - -
9.7 104 - -
773.6 7185 118.7 87.7

£82m 94% Convertible Subordinated Bonds due 2006. At the option of sither the holder, at any time, or the issuer, with effect from

September 1998, each £1 bond can be converted into ordinary shares of 100 pence, credited as fully paid, at an initial conversion

price of 428 pence per ordinary share. At 31 March 1996, Bonds to the value of £35,000 had been converted into 8,177 ordinary

shares. Between 1 April 1986 and the close of business on 18 June 1996:

- the Company has purchased for cancellation, Bonds to the neminal value of £31.7m; and

— boncdholders have converted bonds to the value of £40.2m into 2.4m ordinary shares.

If the remaining options on Bonds are fully exercised, a further 2.4m ordinary shares will be issued.
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Notes to the accounts

Borrowings

Bank loans and overdrafts

+ Within one year

« Between one and two years
« Between two and five years

» After more than five years

Other loans and finance leases

¢ Within one year

+ Between one and two years

« Between two and five years

« After more than five years: other loans

convertible debt

Total borrowings

Loans are repayabie between 1996 and 2030.
Loans wholly repayable after more than five years hence are:

.

« Bank Loans

« Qther loans

Other lcans include:
_ £150m 102% Guaranteed Bonds due 200

_ $150m 6%% Motes due 2004 of which $40m has been swapped int

exchange rate fluctuations

_ ioans totalling £32.4m (1995: £32.4m) are secured on the rev

The aggregate amount of loans repayable by instalments any

+ BankLoans
» (ther loans

« Finance leases

The Group is committed to further outstanding lease obligations of £437m to fund future ca
The range of interest rates on outstanding bank loans are 3,59 to 11.59% (1995: 5% to 11.5%) and on other loans 3% to 11%
{1985: 3% 10 10.5%5), These interest rates are those contracted on the underlying borrowings before taking account of interest rate
protection. Interest rates on finance leases are finked to LIBOR.

The Group has arranged long dated interest rate swaps which have the e
sterling borrowings of £15m for a remaining term of 12 years. In addition

£35m of sterling borrowings from an average fixed rate of 10.4% to flo

Group Company

1996 1995 1906 1985
£m £m £m £m
105.1 62.3 46.6 -
6.6 42 - -
48.4 398 - —
166.3 181.9 - -
326.4 288.2 46.6 -
34 8.1 - -
3.2 35 - -
4.4 38 - -
498.1 4450 - —
81.8 81.4 81.8 81.4
590.6 541.8 81.8 81.4
917.0 830.0 128.4 81.4
Group Company

1996 1995 1996 1985
£m em £m €m
50.0 50.0 - -
36%.2 361.8 81.8 81.4
412.2 411.8 81.8 81.4

ating rat

part of which falis due

enues of Thames Water Utilities.

pital investment.

o floating rate Deutschmarks to protect against adverse

for repayment more than five years hence are:

Group

1996 1995
£m £m
173.5 175.0
4.3 14.9
213.2 154.0
391.0 3439

ffect of fixing the rate of interest at an average of 8.3% on
the Group has arranged interest rate swaps which convert
es for a weighted average remaining term of four years.
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K Group Company
I . Closure and Insurance Pensions Othar
24 Provisions for liabilities contract provisions liapilities Other {nate 30) Total provisions
and charges £ il il il i Em
Balance at 1 April 1995 48 204 4.1 a.7 43.0 0.5
Foreign exchange adjustments 01 - 0.1 - 0.2 -
Provided during the year 79.0 4.1 2.2 0.5 85.8 1.0
Utilised during the year (0.6} - 0.2) 0.1) {0.9) -
Released during the year (1.6) - (1.0} - {2.6) -
Disposal of subsidiaries 0.1} - {1.2) (0.3) (1.6) -
Balance at 31 March 1996 81.6 33.5 4.0 4.8 123.9 1.5
25 Share capital
Group

and Company

1996 1995
£m £m
Authorised
525,000,00% ordinary shares of £1 each 525.0 5250
Allotted, called up and fully paid
403,981,137 ordinary shares of £1 each (1995: 399,719,221} 404.0 309.7
MNumber of shares allotted Cansideration
1906 1995 1896 1995
Details of ordinary shares ailotted during the year are as follows: 000 000 £m £m
Scrip dividends 3,109 3,732
‘ Employee share schemes '
« Sharesave Schems 676 2,275 1.5 41
« Executive Share Option Scheme 316 128 1.2 04
* Profit Sharing Scheme 153 165 0.8 0.8
4,254 8,300 3.5 5.4

Scrip di\;idends

QOrdinary shares were allotted o ordinary shareholders consequent on the offer of a scrip dividend alternative as foliows:
+ 1985 final dividend 2,103,201 shares - 21 August 1895

* 19986 interim dividend 1,005,638 shares — 1% January 1996.

Employee share schemes

The Company has adopted the following schemes for employees to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company in accordance with
the rutes of the respective schemes.

» the Thames Water Sharesave Scheme is a ‘save as you earn’ share option scheme open to all eligible employees with options
exercisable, in normal circumstances, after completion of a five or seven year contract
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Share capital (continued)

« the Thames Water Executive Share Option Scheme is a scheme for senior executives with options exercisable between the third

and tenth anniversaries of the date of grant. In December 1995, 373,440 executive share options were issued at a price of 560p.

These options can only be exercised if in respect of any three consecutive financial years commencing 1 April 1995, the increase in

earnings per share compared with the earnings per share in the year ended 31 March 1895 has exceeded inflation by an average of

at least 29 per annum, The terms on which these options were granted are in line with institutional guidelines

+ the Thames Water Profit Sharing Scheme is a scherne open to all eligible employess whereby a bonus may be declared in the form

of shares in Thames Water Plc, subject to profit targsts being attained and to the conditions for efigibility. Shares have been

appropriated under this scheme and are held in trust under the terms of the scheme.

Options granted and outstanding at 31 March 1996

Date of grant
Thames Water Sharesave Scheme
Five-year scheme

* 13July 1980

o 12 July 1991

« 29 November 1991
10 July 1992

9July 1983

+ 1:December 1994
» 30 November 1995
Seven-year scheme

+ 12 December 1989
13 July 1980

12 July 1291

» 29 November 1991
« 10July 1992

« 9July 1983

+ 1 December 1994
* 30 November 1995

Thames Water Executive Share Option Scheme
* 17 January 1900

« 18June 1990

+ 2July 1901

» 15November 1991
* 24 June 1992

» 1 December 1892
« 18 June 1993

+ 19 November 1993
+ 8 December 1994
+ §December 1995

Number of Option price Normai date
ordinary shares per share of exercise
317 227p Oct 1985 - Mar 1996
434,880 288p Oct 1996 — Mar 1997
471,154 296p Feb 1997 — July 1897
318,276 349p Oct 1997 — Mar 1998
523,044 372p Oct 1998 — Mar 1999
1,298,481 42%p Feb 2000 — July 2000
1,103,772 420p Feb 2001 — July é001
939,640 176p Feb 1997 - July 1997
142,968 227p Oct 1897 — Mar 1998
252,296 288p Oct 1998 — Mar 1999
263,477 296p Feb 1999 — July 1999
198,752 349p Qct 1999 — Mar 2000
135,149 372p Oct 2000'— Mar 2001
362,720 421p Feb 2002 — July 2002
287,200 420p Feb 2003 — July 2003
8,000 278p 1993-2000
6,000 283p 1993-2000
355,000 347p 1994-2001
73,000 356p 1994-2001
193,000 418p 1995-2002
7,000 480p 1995-2002
10,000 466p 1996-2003
25,000 521p 1096-2003
408,900 453p 1997-2004
373,440 560p 1998-2005
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26 Share premium of the Group and Company em

_—
Batance at 1 April 1995 6.2
Prermium on issue of 1.2m ordinary shares 23
Expenses of issuing shares 0.3
—
Balance at 31 March 1996 8.2
—

The Subsidiary Associated Goodwil!
Company undertakings undertakings reserve Total
27 Reserves and retained profits £m £m £m em £m

Profit and loss account

Balance at 1 April 1995 36.9 1,696.0 (3.8) (99.8) 1,629.3
Foreign exchange adjustments - (1.2 - - (1.2)
Profit for the financial year 4777 {274.1) 0.1 - 203.5
Dividends (114.2) - - - (114.2)
Adjustment for the issue of scrip shares 12.4 - - - 124
Goodwill written back on sale/closure - - - 283 28.3
Balance at 31 March 1996 412.8 1,420.7 {3.9) (71.5) 1,758.1

Profit for the financial year for subsidiary undertakings is stated after the payment of dividends of £654.5m to the Company.

28 OQperating leases

At 31 March 1996 the Group was committed to making the following payments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases.

Group Company
1996 1995 1996 1965
Land and buildings £m £m £m £m
Leases which expire:
* Within ore year 0.3 0.1 - -
* Between two and five years 0.6 2.1 - -
* After more than five years 2.1 2.7 0.4 04
Total 3.0 49 0.4 0.4
Other
Leases which expire:
* Within one year 0.7 1.1 - -
* Between two and five years 4.1 24 - -
* Ajter more than five years - 0.1 - -
Total 4.8 36 - -
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Notes to the accounts

Group

1996 19¢5

Capital commitments £m £m
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 154 233

In addition to these commitments, the Group has leng-term capital investrent plans to meet shortfalls in performance and asset
condition and to provide for new demand and growth.

The Company has no capital commitments.

Pension schemes

Pension arrangemaents for the majority of the Group’s employees are of the defined benefit type funded through pension schemes
whose assets are held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds.

The total ongoing pension cost for the Group during the year ended 31 March 1996 was £19.2m (1995: £18.1m) of which £1.3m
{1995 £0.9m) relates to the overseas schemes. The pension cost relating to the UK schemes is assessed in accordance with

advice received from Bacon &Woodrow, the consulting actuaries to the schemes. The pension costs relating to the overseas
schemes are assessed in accordance with local practice, with liabilities provided to meet the pensions reporting requirements of
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice number 24 where material differences arise.

Current levels of pension charge and contributions to the UK schemes are based on actuarial reviews of the various schemes as at
6 April 1993. The principal assumptions used in determining the pension cost were that salary increases, excluding allowance for
promotional increases, would be 7% per annum and that the rate of return on investments would amount 1o 9% per annum. Pension
inéreases are pre-funded in tine with inflation for three of the four UK pension schemes and are granted in line with the rules of each
scheme and any statutory requirements. For the remaining UK scheme, pension increases are at the rate of 5% per annum or the
annual movement in the Retail Price index if less. Dividend growth would be 4%2% per annum.

The actuarial methods used were the Projected Unit method and the Attained Age method as considered appropriate by

the actuaries. .

For the largest schenies of the Group the total market value of assets as at the last valuation date was £483m and the actuarial value
of these assets represented 1029 of the value of the benefits that had accrued to members after allowing for expected future salary
increases. The next valuaticn hecomes effective from 6 April 1986.

N

Guarantees

The Company has guarantead the overdrafis and loans of certain subsidiaries up to a maximur of £378.8m (1995: £384.2m).The
Company has also guaranteed facilities for contract bonding on behalf of certain subsidiaries amounting to £166.6m at 31 March
1996 (1985: £97.5m). In addition, there are a number of parent company guarantees in respect of subsidiary company contractual
obligations which have been entered into in the normal course of business. No losg is expected to arise under these arrangements.

Thames Water Utilities Limited

Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment under which Thames Water Utilities Limited operates requires specified accounting
statements to be published with its annual accounts or those of its parent company. Anyone reguiring a copy of these accounts
including the specified staternents for the year ended 31 March 1996 should apply to: The Company Secretary, Thames Water Plc,
Nugent House, Vastern Road, Reading RG1 8DB. Tel: 0345 414140 (calls from the UK will be charged at the local rate).
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. 33 Group undertakings

At 31 March 1996 the Group held more than 109 of the allotted share capital of the following principal trading undertakings.

Subsidiary undertakings
Utilities
Thames Water Utilities Limited

International Operations and
Process Contracting

Thames Water International
Services Holdings Limited

Thames Water International
Services Limited

PWT Projects Limited

Thames Water Asia Pacific Pty Limited
PWT (Singapore) Pte Limited
Paterson Caﬁdy {Malaysia) Sdn.Bhd.

Thames Water Malaysia Sdn.Bhd.
Kelantan Water (Malaysia) Sdn.Bhd.

Thames Water International
Thailand Limited

PWT (Hong Kong) Limited
Simon Hartley HK Limited
Thames Water Deutschland GmbH

Mitteldeutsche Wasser-und
Umwelttechnik AG (UTAG)

Products and Services
Thames Water Products
& Services Limited

Connect 2020 Limited
Simon Hartley Limited

PClI Membrane Systems Limited

T M Products Limited

Thames Water Environmental
Services Limited

1

THAMES WATER

Proportion of shares held

Country of incorporation

Class of share

registration & cperation capital heid Directly Indirectly Nature of business
England &Wales Ordinary 100% Water & sewerage services
England &Wales Ordinary 100% Management company
England &Wales Crdinary 100% Marketing of technicat
managerial services

England &Wales Ordinary 100% Design contracting
Australia Ordinary 100% Design contracting
Singapore Ordinary 100% Design contracting
Malaysia Qrdinary 100% Design contracting
Malaysia Ordinary 100% Water operations &
maintenance

Malaysia Ordinary 70% Water operations &
maintenance

Thailand Ordinary 100% Water operations &
maintenance

Hong Keng Ordinary 100% Design contracting
Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Wastewater projects
Germany Ordinary 100% Management company
Germany Ordinary 100% Water contracting &
consultancy

England &Wales Ordinary 100% Management company
England &Wales Ordinary 100% Procurement Logistics
Engiand &Wales Ordinary 100% Sewage treatment
England &Wales Ordinary 100% Process and effluent
treatment

England &Wales Ordinary 100% Pipeline products,
maobile water treatment

and disinfection

England & Wales Ordinary 100% Management company



33

Notes to the accounts

Group undertakings (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings
Brophy Group Ple

Metro Rod Ple

Morgan Collis Group Limited

Thames Waste
Management Limited

Thames Water Holdings Ing
Ashbrook Corporation ing
Hydro-Aercbics Inc

F B Leopold Company In¢

Property and Insurance
Isis Insurance Company Limited

Kennet Properties Limited

Thames Water Investments
Limited

Thames Water Property Limited

Thames Water Developments
Limited

Proportion of shares held

Country of incorporation Class of share

registration & oparation capital held Directly Indirectly Nature of business
Engtand &Wales Ordinary 100% Utilities & grounds
maintenance
England &Wales Ordinary 100% Drain & pipe cleaning
services
England &Wales Ordinary 100% Sewerage services
England &Wales Ordinary 100% Waste management
&treatment
USA Common 100% Management company

Convertible 100%
USA Ordinary 100% Sewage treatment
preducts
USA Crdinary 100% Packaged sewage
treatment
USA Ordinary 100% Water products
Isle of Man Ordinary 100% Insurance
England &Wales Ordinary 100% Property
England &Wales Ordinary 100% Property
England &Wales Ordinary 100% Property
England &Wales Ordinary 100% - Property

Afull list of subsidiary undertakings within the Group will be filed at Companies House with the Company's annual return.

Associated undertakings
Binnie Thames Water Limited

Subterra Hoidings Limited
fzmit Su As

Pathum ThaniWater
Company Limited

Thames Water Japan Limited

United Water Services
Pty (Limited}
United Water International

Pty Limited

Bovis Thames (Shanghai)
Limited

England &Wales

England &Wales

Turkey

Thailand

Japan

Australia

Australia

British Virgin Islands

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

QOrdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

35%

50%

60%

30%

50%

50%

47.5%

50%

Internationat consultancy

Pipeline rehabilitation

services

Water operaticns &
maintenance

Water operations &
rhaintenance

Finance company

Water operations &
maintenance

Water operations &
maintenance

Water operations &

maintenance
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Group five year summary

Profit and Loss Account

Year ended 31 March

Turnover: continuing operations
Cperating costs

Operating exceptional items

Qperating profit
Profit/(loss} from interests
in associated undertakings
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Other non-operating exceptional items
Income from other investments

Interest

.

Profit on ordiﬁaw activities before taxation

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial year

Earnings per share
* pre-excepticnal items
* post-exceptional items

Dividend per share

Balance sheet

As at 31 March

Fixed assets

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Creditors: amounts falling due
after more than one year

Convertible debt

Provisions for liabilities and charges
Net assets

Share capital
Share premium

Reserves and retained profits

Equity shareholders’ funds

1996 1995 1994 1993 1992
£m £m £m £m £tm
1,193.6 11736 1,104.8 1,044.4 8005
{827.9) (816.0) (785.8) (769.2} (665.3)
- - (35.0) - -
365.7 3576 284.0 2752 235.2
(0.1} 0.1 (1.8) (.13 (0.2)
0.2 - 1.7 4.0 8.1 9.9
{95.0) - - - -
6.8 0.6 3.4 0.9 0.3
{48.9) {56.3) (47.9) {30.8) 5.9
228.7 303.7 241.7 2513 238.3
{25.2) (21.5) {19.4) 21.7) {25.2)
203.5 . 2822 222.3- 229.-6 2113
74.3p 71.3p 65.8p 59.3p 54.8p
50.7p 713p 56.8p 59.3p 54.8p
28.3p 25.3p 22.5p 21.0p 19.2p
1l996 1995 1994 16963 1992
£m £m £m £m £m
3,140.9 2.900.9 2,703.4 2,4256 2,106.4
8.7 (22.8) (73.3) {(114.9) (21.9)
(773.6) {718.5) 1673.8) {502.9) " (425.8)
{81.8) (81.4) (80.9) (80.5) (80.0)
(123.9) (43.0) {42.6) (36.8) (26.2)
2,170.3 2,035.2 1,832.8 1,690.5 1,652.7
404.0 399.7 393.4 389.7 386.1
8.2 8.2 3.9 1.5 -
1,758.1 1,629.3 1,435.5 1,299.3 1,166.6
2,170.3 2,035.2 1,832.8 1,690.5 1,552.7

Operating excepticnal items in 1984 includes turnover of £11.6m and operating costs of £23.4m.
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Shareholder information

Category

Private Persong

Banks and nominees

Insurance, investment and other limited companies
Pension funds

Other corporate bodies

Size of Holding

1-500

501-1,000
1,001-5,000
5,001-50,000
50,001-100,000
100,001-1,000,000
Greater than 1,000,000

Financial calendar

Financial year ended 31 March 1996

10 June 1996 Ex-dividend date for final dividend

18 June 1996 Record (or qualifying) date for 1996 final
dividend

30 July 1986 Barbican Centre, London 1896 Annual
General Meeting

2 September, 1996 Final dividend payable.

Financizl year ended 31 March 1997

29 October 1996 Announcement of half-yearly results for
six months to 30 September 1996

February 1997 interim dividend payable.

Scrip dividend alternative

Information on the scrip dividend alternative will be circulated
in the near future to those shareholders who have not already
joined the Scrip Dividend Mandate Scheme.

Scrip dividend mandate scheme
If you have already joined the Scrip Dividend Mandate
Scheme you will receive shares automatically. Any small cash
balances which may have been carried forward from the last
dividend will be taken into account when calculating your
entitlement to shares. Details of the final dividend per share
and the value of each new share can be found in the
Chairman’s letter accompanying this Report.

If however you wish 1o receive cash instead of shares,
a letter cancelling your Scrip Dividend Mandate must be
received by the Company's Registrar at the address shown
below by not later than 3pm on 1 August 1996: The Registrar,
Thames Water Pic, The Royal Bank of Scotland pic, PC Box
435, Owen House, 8 Bankhead Crossway North, Edinburgh
EH11 4BR.

Number of
Holders % Holding %
237,103 95.48 73,549,753 18.21
9,684 3.90 290,502,019 71.81
1,230 0.50 16,370,976 4.05
56 0.02 10,229,507 2.53
260 0.10 13,328,882 3.30
248,333 100 403,981,137 100
216,874 8733 52,825,499 13.08
21,839 8.79 14,615,975 3.62
7,915 3.19 14,212,941 3.52
1,049 0.42 17,751,011 4.39
216 0.09 16,279,832 4.03
377 0.15 119,856,842 29.67
83 0.03 168,439,037 41.69
248,333 100 403,981,137 100

Payment direct {o bank

Cash dividends mandated by shareholders to a bank or to
certain building scciety accounts will be paid via BACS
(Bankers’ Autcmated Clearing Services). Tax vouchers will
normally be posted direct to the shareholder's registered
address.

Share register

From 1 May 1993 the Company's share register has been
maintained by The Royal Bank of Scotland plc. Shareholders
who have questions about the Scrip Dividend Mandate
Scheme or who require help or information’ about their
shareholding may either write to the Registrar at the address
above or telephone on 0131-523 6230 or 0131-523 6231.

Share price information line (CityCall)

Callers can obtain a current share price on 0891 222302. The
charge is 39p per minute ¢cheap rate and 49p per minute
peak rate inclusive of VAT,

Share dealing service

Shareholders are able to use the services of a low-cost postal
share dealing service operated for Thames Water Plc by
Cazenove & Co. For further details contact: Thames Water
Shareholder Enguiry Unit, 13th Floor, Nugent House, Vastern
Road, Reading RG1 8DB.

Shareholder enguiries

Shareholders with enquiries about Thames Water Plc or
shareholder matters can contact the Sharehoider Enquiry Unit
by writing to the address above or by telephoning

0345 414140, Local call rates apply frem the UK. Please note
that the 0345 code must be used even if calling from Reading.

Thames Water PIc. Registered office: 14 Cavendish Place, London W1M ONU. Regislered in England and Wales No. 2366623,
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